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2019–20  
Our Year at a Glance

22,621
Telephone advice line 
callers assisted

35,013
Telephone advice line 
referrals to other services

30%

Mental health and 
disability services 
increased

13
COVID-19 
fact sheets 
created

Provided community 
legal education to

4,378
participants

686,536  Website visits

3,213 
Average 13 per day

Webchats

Acknowledgement of Country
Tasmania Legal Aid acknowledges and pays respect to the palawa (Tasmanian Aboriginal people)  
as the traditional and original owners, and continuing custodians of the land and waters of this island, 
lutruwita (Tasmania), where we live and work. 
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Chair’s report

The 2019–2020 financial year will be remembered most for 
the impact of COVID-19. Tasmania Legal Aid (TLA) was not 
immune from its reach. 

Whilst the impact of COVID-19 has been greater on 
others, we recognise the efforts and commitments of staff 
and stakeholders in adapting quickly to continue to deliver 
our services to our community. The resilience exhibited in 
responding to the impact of COVID-19 on our community, 
and their concern for the wellbeing of each other and our 
clients, stands as a great measure of TLA’s commitment to 
one of its key foci under its new strategic plan: wellbeing 
and resilience. 

Planning for TLA’s Strategic Plan 2020–2023 began in 
November 2019, and was finalised and presented to all 
staff and stakeholders in July 2020 under our new brand 
reflecting our new direction. 

In keeping with: 

1.	 Our Vision that all Tasmanians are safe, respected 
and have their voices heard; and 

2.	Our Purpose to: 

	• provide legal services to help Tasmanians 
understand their rights, navigate the system to 
resolve their legal issues and get the assistance they 
need; 

	• to support and advocate for vulnerable and 
marginalised Tasmanians; and 

	• to work with our clients, staff, legal partners and 
community to improve the legal system. 

TLA’s Strategic Plan 2020–2023 was developed through 
the great collaboration of clients, staff, management, the 
Commission and our community and legal partners. 
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With: 

	• our core Values of Honesty, Courage and 
Engagement; 

	• the Prioritisation of Community – addressing 
the needs of our clients, staff, our partners and 
the Tasmanian community; Communication – 
improving the way that we communicate within 
our organisation and with our community, and 
Collaboration – proactively engaging with clients, 
staff, legal partners, and our community; and 

	• a focus on Children, Family Violence, and Wellbeing 
and Resilience 

we are looking forward to implementing the plans that 
we have set to achieve the goals that we have set for the 
next three years, and measuring that success. 

In May of this year, TLA signed a Memorandum of 
Understanding with the Women’s Legal Service of 
Tasmania to provide better coordinated family violence 
legal services for Tasmanians. This MoU responds to: 

	• the joint commitment of both organisations to 
provide effective and responsive legal services that 
address family violence; and 

	• our statutory obligation to provide legal aid in the 
most effective, efficient and economic manner; 
ensuring that our services are targeted towards 
identified need, and that there is no unnecessary 
duplication of services within the sector. 

With an increasing need for our services in our community, 
funding for TLA continues to remain a concern for the 
Commission. This year we delivered our services to within 
$10,000 of a $17 million dollar budget. This is a credit to 
the management and staff responsible for delivering 

our services in times of unprecedented demand, and 
managing our resources in extraordinary times. 

We continue to recognise and appreciate the support 
that we received from the Attorney General and Treasurer, 
and for the top-up funding that we received from the 
State Government to make up for the shortfall from the 
Commonwealth Government under the last year of the 
2015–20 National Partnership Agreement. Our hope is that 
this will continue under new arrangements. 

The Commission thanks our Director Vincenzo Caltabiano 
for the extraordinary leadership and direction he has 
provided to TLA this year; and the management, staff and 
stakeholders of TLA for contributing to this years’ success. 

We’ll look forward to reporting on the initial outcomes of 
the implementation of our new Strategic Plan under the 
new National Legal Assistance Partnership in next year’s 
report. 

Patrick Lunn  
Chair  
Tasmania Legal Aid 
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Director’s report

As we review and reflect on the last year it is an 
understatement to say that a lot has happened. While 
there has been a great deal of disruption, I’m proud 
that TLA has continued to grow and launch several 
new initiatives to benefit our clients and the Tasmanian 
community.

A key factor to achieving our goals are the strong 
relationships within the justice sector. The willingness 
of people, within TLA and externally, has seen us work 
together to achieve our goals.

We saw this coming together in the collaboration 
between TLA and Community Legal Centres in response 
to COVID-19. The sector collaborated to share resources, 
get information out to the community and to argue for 
sustained support and services for vulnerable Tasmanians.

The justice sector also came together to ensure that 
people could have continued access to court – quickly 
adapting to use technology. This quick response showed 
how TLA, the legal profession and the justice system is 
able and willing to adapt to suit community needs.

Although TLA closed its doors for a period we were able 
to continue to provide information, advice and referrals 
through a range of means. I am grateful for the versatility 
demonstrated by staff who responded quickly to the 
challenge and ensured continuity of service throughout 
the pandemic lockdown and since.

The closure of courts and the need for physical distancing 
meant that there were fewer overall Duty Lawyer and 
clinic services delivered.
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A highlight of the year was the all–staff planning day held 
in Campbell Town in January 2020. This was a first for TLA 
– staff from around the state coming together to discuss 
who we are and what we do. For many it was the first 
face-to-face meeting with colleagues in different offices 
they have worked alongside for many years but never met 
in person. There was a tremendous sense of unity and 
commitment to continuing to improve how we do things.

The planning day was one of the key steps in the 
development of the Strategic Plan 2020–23. From this 
came a clear sense of our vision and how we will work 
with others to achieve it, with priority focus on Community, 
Communication and Collaboration.

Specific purpose Commonwealth funding supported the 
launch of several initiatives, including the Family Violence 
and Cross Examination Scheme, which provides funding to 
prevent the direct cross-examination of a person by the 
alleged perpetrator of family violence.

Similarly, the Family Law Property Mediation Trial was 
established with Commonwealth funding  to help parties 
resolve family law property disputes, with 106 participating 
parties taking part in the first half of 2020. The high 
demand indicates there is a strong need for this service 
and we hope that its success will lead to ongoing funding.

In both instances we worked closely with the legal 
profession to ensure that the structure was appropriate. 
I wish to thank Kristen Wylie, Susie Winter and Anthea 
d’Emden for their work in realising these projects, and the 
private practitioners for their valuable input.

Other new initiatives include the Family Advocacy and 
Support Service’s Men’s Service and Your Story, a free 
support service for those who want to participate in the 
Royal Commission into Violence, Abuse, Neglect and 
Exploitation of People with Disability.

There has been a steady increase in demand for legal aid 
services in recent years, and 2019–20 was no exception. 
There were around 280 more grants of assistance than 
the previous year (up 5.7%) and 3,200 more extensions of 
aid (up 15.2%). Legal aid grants to private practitioners 
grew by nearly 14%, from $5.193 million to $5.9 million. Over 
the last four years the number of extensions rose 60% and 
expenditure on legal services increased 58%. 

I acknowledge the work of staff and private practitioners 
who have delivered legal aid services for Tasmanians. I 
also acknowledge the work of our grants staff who ensure 
that this increasing demand is dealt with in a timely way, 
processing an average of 120 applications a day. 

Tasmanians’ ongoing and increasing demand for legal aid 
needs to be supported by appropriate funding. Over the 
coming year we are committed to working to implement 
our Strategy. We will work with the justice system and the 
community more broadly to improve legal services and 
support for Tasmanians.

Vincenzo Caltabiano  
Director  
Tasmania Legal Aid
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1

Tasmania Legal Aid is an 
independent statutory body 
established by the Legal Aid 
Commission Act 1990 (Tas) 
to provide legal information, 
advice and representation to 
all Tasmanians.

Who  
are we?
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WHO ARE WE?

For almost 30 years Tasmania Legal Aid has been helping 
Tasmanians gain access to justice. 

We support vulnerable and marginalised people and 
have a focus on improving our services for children, 
responding to family violence, and to build the skills, 
wellbeing and resilience of our clients, staff and legal 
practitioners. 

We were established under the Legal Aid Commission Act 
of 1990 (Tas) and have worked independently of the State 
and Federal governments throughout our three decades 
of operation. 

We are governed by a Board of five Commissioners, which 
includes the Director of Tasmania Legal Aid who also 
oversees operations. 

We are the largest government-funded legal assistance 
service in Tasmania and play a central role in providing 
access to justice for disadvantaged Tasmanians, including 
people living with disability, young people and the elderly. 

Tasmania Legal Aid now has over 85 full-time employees, 
mostly directed to frontline service delivery, including 
lawyers and administrative staff, or in processing grants of 
assistance. 

Our vision
All Tasmanians are safe, 
respected and have 
their voices heard. 

Our purpose
>	�� To provide legal services to help 

Tasmanians understand their 
rights, navigate the system to 
resolve their legal issues, and get 
the assistance they need.

>	� To support and advocate for 
vulnerable and marginalised 
Tasmanians.

>	� To work with our clients, staff, 
legal partners and community to 
improve the legal system. 

Our Organisation

Our organisation has grown over the past year to improve 
service delivery and implement new programs such as 
amica, Your Story and the Family Advocacy and Support 
Service (FASS) Men's Unit. 

We have a budget of over $17 million that comes from the 
Commonwealth and State governments, the Solicitors 
Guarantee Fund and client contributions. Our offices are 
in Hobart, Launceston, Devonport and Burnie and we 
deliver outreach services to various other locations around 
Tasmania. 

2020 marked the beginning of our new Strategic Plan 
2020-2023 with focus on further engaging with the 
Tasmanian community, especially those who are most 
vulnerable; communicating with our clients, partners and 
staff to empower, engage and inform; and collaborating 
with our partners and stakeholders to ensure the 
Tasmanian legal system delivers the best outcomes for our 
most vulnerable clients. 
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ADVICE & LEGAL SERVICES

CIVIL

COMMUNITY LEGAL EDUCATION  
AND INFORMATION

CRIMINAL PRACTICE

FAMILY

FAMILY DISPUTE RESOLUTION

SAFE AT HOME

GRANTS & CIVIL DISBURSEMENT FUND

TASMANIA LEGAL AID 
BOARD

DIRECTOR

BUSINESS SERVICES

Tasmania Legal Aid  
Organisational structure
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Tasmania Legal Aid
Strategic Plan 2020–2023 Framework

OUR VISION

All Tasmanians are safe, 
respected and have  
their voices heard OUR PURPOSE

•  To provide legal services 
to help Tasmanians 
understand their rights, 
navigate the system to 
resolve their legal issues, 
and get the assistance 
they need

•  To support and advocate 
for vulnerable and 
marginalised Tasmanians

•  To work with our clients, 
staff, legal partners and 
community to improve the 
legal system.

OUR VALUES

Honesty
•  We communicate openly and clearly
•  We provide clear, accurate and realistic 

advice; are accountable to our clients, 
our partners and our community.

Courage
•  We speak up, listen to different views, 

and take on feedback
•  We advocate for our clients, our sector 

and our organisation; are open to new 
ideas and adaptable to change.

Engagement
•  We are involved in the design of 

services, programs and policies
•  We are committed to the best outcomes 

for our clients and our community; and 
work collaboratively with our partners 
and our clients.

COMMUNITY

We provide high quality, accessible legal 
services to Tasmanians, especially those who 
are most vulnerable, delivered by skilled and 
well supported staff.

1.  Our clients feel safe and respected and 
receive high quality legal advice.

2.  Children are at the centre of our service 
delivery and women and children 
experiencing family violence are prioritised.

3.  Our staff feel valued and proud to work at 
Legal Aid.

Our clients and staff are engaged in the design 
and evaluation of our services, programs and 
policies.

OUR PRIORITY AREAS

OUR GOALS

SUCCESS
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OUR FOCUS

Children · Family Violence  
· Wellbeing & Resilience
Our focus is the lens through which 
we approach planning and service 
delivery across our full range of services. 
Most of our work – across civil, criminal 
and family law – involves children, and family 
violence in its broadest context. In this way, we 
will develop a systemic organisational response 
to improve our services for 
children, to respond to family 
violence and to build the skills, 
wellbeing and resilience of our 
clients, staff and legal partners.

PROGRAMS & VALUES

PRIORITY AREAS & GOALS

PURPOSE

VISION

FOCUS

OUR STATUTORY OBLIGATION
To sustainably provide legal aid in the most effective, 
efficient and economical manner.

COMMUNICATION

We communicate with our clients, partners, 
staff and community to ensure that they 
are informed, engaged and empowered.

1.  Our community is informed about our 
services, their legal rights and options 
to prevent or intervene early in legal 
problems.

2.  We are a leading voice for legislative 
and social reforms that support 
improved outcomes for our clients.

3.  Our communications with our clients, 
staff, partners and community are clear, 
accessible, consistent, regular and 
transparent.

COLLABORATION

We work collaboratively with our partners and 
stakeholders to ensure the Tasmanian legal system 
delivers the best outcomes for the most vulnerable clients.

1.  We play a key role in developing a vibrant Tasmanian 
legal profession, supporting private practitioners to help 
legal aid clients, and in improving legal proceedings, 
particularly for criminal matters.

2.  Our service delivery and organisational decisions are 
evidence-based, and informed by consultation with 
clients, staff and partners to best respond to clients with 
multiple needs.

3.  We collaborate with our legal and community partners 
in research, community education and other projects to 
promote the interests of our clients.

More Tasmanians access our services for 
legal advice, information and education.

Collaborative partnerships contribute to a fairer, 
more timely and responsive Tasmanian legal system.

23Tasmania Legal Aid  Strategic Plan 2020–2023

WHO ARE WE?

12 Tasmania Legal Aid  Annual Report 2019–2020



Tasmania Legal Aid
Strategic Plan 2020–2023 Framework

OUR VISION

All Tasmanians are safe, 
respected and have  
their voices heard OUR PURPOSE

•  To provide legal services 
to help Tasmanians 
understand their rights, 
navigate the system to 
resolve their legal issues, 
and get the assistance 
they need

•  To support and advocate 
for vulnerable and 
marginalised Tasmanians

•  To work with our clients, 
staff, legal partners and 
community to improve the 
legal system.

OUR VALUES

Honesty
•  We communicate openly and clearly
•  We provide clear, accurate and realistic 

advice; are accountable to our clients, 
our partners and our community.

Courage
•  We speak up, listen to different views, 

and take on feedback
•  We advocate for our clients, our sector 

and our organisation; are open to new 
ideas and adaptable to change.

Engagement
•  We are involved in the design of 

services, programs and policies
•  We are committed to the best outcomes 

for our clients and our community; and 
work collaboratively with our partners 
and our clients.

COMMUNITY

We provide high quality, accessible legal 
services to Tasmanians, especially those who 
are most vulnerable, delivered by skilled and 
well supported staff.

1.  Our clients feel safe and respected and 
receive high quality legal advice.

2.  Children are at the centre of our service 
delivery and women and children 
experiencing family violence are prioritised.

3.  Our staff feel valued and proud to work at 
Legal Aid.

Our clients and staff are engaged in the design 
and evaluation of our services, programs and 
policies.

OUR PRIORITY AREAS

OUR GOALS

SUCCESS

22 Tasmania Legal Aid  Strategic Plan 2020–2023

OUR FOCUS

Children · Family Violence  
· Wellbeing & Resilience
Our focus is the lens through which 
we approach planning and service 
delivery across our full range of services. 
Most of our work – across civil, criminal 
and family law – involves children, and family 
violence in its broadest context. In this way, we 
will develop a systemic organisational response 
to improve our services for 
children, to respond to family 
violence and to build the skills, 
wellbeing and resilience of our 
clients, staff and legal partners.

PROGRAMS & VALUES

PRIORITY AREAS & GOALS

PURPOSE

VISION

FOCUS

OUR STATUTORY OBLIGATION
To sustainably provide legal aid in the most effective, 
efficient and economical manner.

COMMUNICATION

We communicate with our clients, partners, 
staff and community to ensure that they 
are informed, engaged and empowered.

1.  Our community is informed about our 
services, their legal rights and options 
to prevent or intervene early in legal 
problems.

2.  We are a leading voice for legislative 
and social reforms that support 
improved outcomes for our clients.

3.  Our communications with our clients, 
staff, partners and community are clear, 
accessible, consistent, regular and 
transparent.

COLLABORATION

We work collaboratively with our partners and 
stakeholders to ensure the Tasmanian legal system 
delivers the best outcomes for the most vulnerable clients.

1.  We play a key role in developing a vibrant Tasmanian 
legal profession, supporting private practitioners to help 
legal aid clients, and in improving legal proceedings, 
particularly for criminal matters.

2.  Our service delivery and organisational decisions are 
evidence-based, and informed by consultation with 
clients, staff and partners to best respond to clients with 
multiple needs.

3.  We collaborate with our legal and community partners 
in research, community education and other projects to 
promote the interests of our clients.

More Tasmanians access our services for 
legal advice, information and education.

Collaborative partnerships contribute to a fairer, 
more timely and responsive Tasmanian legal system.

23Tasmania Legal Aid  Strategic Plan 2020–2023 13Tasmania Legal Aid  Annual Report 2019–2020



WHO ARE WE?

Our Board

Patrick was first appointed Chair of Tasmania Legal Aid 
on 6 November 2014 for a three-year term. The Minister 
for Justice re-appointed Patrick for a further three-year 
term commencing on 6 November 2017.

Patrick graduated from the University of Tasmania with 
the combined degrees of Bachelor of Arts and Bachelor 
of Laws in 1995.

Patrick has practiced in commercial litigation and 
dispute resolution since 1995 with a particular emphasis 
on banking and finance, commercial disputes between 
businesses, securities enforcement, debt recovery, 
professional indemnity insurance claims and personal 
and corporate insolvency.

Patrick has been the Managing Partner/Director of 
Simmons Wolfhagen since 2011. He became a member 
of the board of management of Plane Tree Studio Inc. in 
1997 and has been a chair of its Board of Management 
since 1998. 

Vincenzo was appointed Director of Tasmania Legal 
Aid on 13 May 2019 for a five-year term. Vincenzo 
commenced practice in Victoria in 1991 and has 17 years’ 
experience as a private practitioner, including 7 years in 
his own firm with the focus on Family Law and Criminal 
Law.

Vincenzo spent almost 11 years at Victoria Legal Aid 
(VLA) in a range of roles, 7 years in the Criminal Law 
Program including as a Duty Lawyer, Manager of 
the Advocacy Team and as the inaugural Summary 
Crime Program Manager. Vincenzo has experience in 
conducting complex indictable and summary crime 
matters. He subsequently conducted the Review of 
VLA Legal Aid Child Protection Legal Services and was 
later appointed as Associate Director, Child Protection 
Transformation at VLA.

Patrick Lunn – Chair Vincenzo Caltabiano – Director
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The Minister for Justice appointed 
Naomi Walsh as a member Legal Aid 
Board for a term of three years on 
27 July 2017.

Naomi is a Teaching Fellow at the 
University of Tasmania and has a 
range of non-executive director 
roles. She has 30 years’ experience 
in finance and commercial 
management roles. She brings 
general management, corporate 
governance and financial expertise 
to the Board. Naomi has Bachelor 
of Business and Master of Business 
degrees from the University of 
Tasmania, is a fellow of the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants and a 
graduate of the Australian Institute 
of Company Directors. 

Julia Higgins was appointed on 
2 May 2017 for a term of three years.

Julia graduated from the University 
of Tasmania with a combined degree 
of Bachelor Commerce and Bachelor 
of Laws in 2001. Julia has practiced 
family law at the Launceston law firm 
of Bishops since August 2002. Julia 
specialises in all the areas of Family 
Law (Children and Financial matters) 
as well as appearing in the child 
protection jurisdiction.

Julia is the Chair of the Family 
Law Practitioners Association of 
Tasmania and is a current Northern 
Representative for the Law Council of 
Tasmania. Julia was for many years 
President of the Northern Young 
Lawyers Committee. 

The Minister for Justice appointed 
Gavin Wailes to the Board on 
15 January 2018.

Gavin graduated from the University 
of Tasmania with a Bachelor of 
Commerce in 2001, has a Graduate 
Certificate in Public Sector 
Management and is a member of 
CPA Australia.

Gavin is currently the Director of 
Finance with the Department of 
Justice and has previously worked 
for the Departments of Treasury and 
Finance, Police, Fire and Emergency 
Management, and for the Tasmania 
Prison Service in a variety of 
accounting and management roles.

Naomi Walsh Julia Higgins Gavin Wailes
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WHO ARE WE?

Who We Are
Tasmania Legal Aid’s vision is that all Tasmanians are safe, 
respected and have their voices heard. We provide legal 
aid in the most effective, efficient and economical manner.  

We continue working to improve access to justice for 
Tasmania’s disadvantaged communities with our practice 
partners in private practice, State and Commonwealth 
governments, Community Legal Centres and National 
Legal Aid, as well as advocacy groups working throughout 
social and legal sectors.

 

Private Lawyers
Private lawyers help a large number of disadvantaged 
clients, often at heavily discounted rates – or sometimes 
pro-bono in special circumstances.

In 2019–2020, 79 law firms and barristers assisted on 3,004 
new Legal Aid case files.

Private lawyers assisted 58% of all people who received 
a new legal aid grant, including serious criminal trials, 
family law cases, and children being represented in the 
Magistrates Court.

Legal Aid has firm relationships with lawyers across the 
state, which helps our clients find representation close to 
where they live.

Legal Aid’s relationship with the private profession is 
crucial to helping us achieve our goals:  
delivering high quality, client-focused legal services while 
providing further access to justice for Tasmanians. 

Law Society of Tasmania 
“The relationship between Legal Aid and the Law 
Society is a vital one. The collaborative work between 
the organisations during the challenges presented by 
COVID-19 has been invaluable in assisting the entire legal 
profession and the justice system generally to function 
effectively through a time of significant change. 

Legal Aid has shown its ability to adapt and evolve with 
changes to the way it delivers its services, including 
the implementation of new Grant Guidelines for means 
tests to minimise the effect of Commonwealth COVID-19 
income supplements. This has all occurred with minimal 
interruption to the essential services it provides. 

Court delays were a concern to our organisations even 
before the pandemic hit. We have worked jointly to 
continue to address Court delays. 

The critical funding needed for the legal assistance sector 
into the future remains key to ensure access to justice 
for the community and the Law Society will continue to 
advocate that appropriate funding be provided to enable 
Legal Aid to continue to assist Tasmanians in need.” 

Crystal Garwood, President  
Law Society of Tasmania 

Our Relationships

Bar Association of Tasmania
“The Tasmanian Bar have welcomed the open dialogue 
it has had with the TLA in the last year. It appreciates its 
co-operation on issues in which the two organisations 
have compatible interests relating to the administration of 
justice.”

Sandra Taglieri, President  
Tasmanian Bar Association 
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Community Legal Centres 
Legal Aid continues to build on our strong partnerships 
with Tasmania’s Community Legal Centres (CLCs) located 
across the state, delivering coordinated legal assistance 
at a local level while avoiding unnecessary duplication of 
our resources and services.

We continue to deliver community legal education across 
Tasmania and TLA lawyers volunteer their services to offer 
after-hours legal advice at CLCs, while the Hobart CLC 
provides Duty Lawyer services at the local Magistrates 
Court on our behalf.

The CEOs of Hobart, Launceston and North West CLCs 
serve on Legal Aid committees reviewing decisions by 
grants officers.

“The last year has seen a strengthening of the relationship 
between Tasmania  Legal Aid and Community Legal 
Centres Tasmania with regular meetings between our 
respective organisations and collaboration around 
community legal education, service delivery and resource 
sharing. Notably, during COVID-19 we collaborated to 
advocate for greater protections for those impacted by 
COVID-19 including residential tenants, persons affected 
by family violence and financial assistance for the socially 
and financially disadvantaged.

Jane Hutchison, Chair  
Community Legal Centres Tasmania 

Department of Justice (Tasmania) 
Tasmania Legal Aid and the Department of Justice have a 
productive and collaborative relationship. We are involved 
in a number committees and provide comments and 
submissions on possible law changes.

Although we are an independent statutory body, TLA 
staff are State employees and the Department assists 
with Human Resources, Work Health & Safety and similar 
matters.

TLA attends the department’s senior management 
meetings that aim to improve the Tasmanian justice 
system. We are involved in the department’s Collaborative 
Service Planning which bring together legal and non-legal 
service providers to discuss how we can better coordinate 
and communicate among our sector and with the public. 

National Legal Aid
National Legal Aid (NLA) represents the eight state and 
territory Legal Aid Commissions in Australia.

NLA’s purpose is to lead and encourage a national system 
of legal aid which allows economically disadvantaged 
people to obtain access to justice, and provide a forum 
for engagement at a national level with government, 
stakeholders, community; and for the individual Legal 
Aid Commissions to engage with each other about 
best practice of legal aid and related issues.

NLA works nationally with the Commonwealth Government 
to improve legal assistance and is supported by working 
groups and networks with representatives from each of 
the Legal Aid Commissions. TLA provides the Office of 
the NLA Secretariat, and supports the work of NLA in 
enhancing access to justice for disadvantaged people by 
bringing the Tasmanian experience and perspective to 
national initiatives and law reform.

NLA initiatives supported by the Commonwealth 
Government during 2019–2020 included: 

	• amica – an online dispute resolution service to help 
separating couples resolve their disagreements and 
to record agreements in plain language.

	• Your Story Disability Legal Support – a national, free, 
legal service that provides independent information 
and advice to people with disability, their families, 
carers, supporters and advocates. Your Story aims to 
support people to safely share their stories with the 
Royal Commission into Violence, Abuse, Neglect and 
Exploitation of People with Disability.

	• Submissions to the Australian Government and 
parliamentary committee inquiries in relation 
to a range of matters such as the National 
Disability Insurance Scheme and family law and 
domestic violence.

Attorney General’s Department 
(Commonwealth) 
Tasmania Legal Aid works closely with the Commonwealth 
Attorney General’s Department. We participate in advisory 
groups and law review committees and provided crucial 
collaboration in the development of national initiatives 
such as amica, Your Story and Family Violence Law Help.
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WHO ARE WE?

SafeChoices Tasmania
“Throughout 2019-20 SafeChoices has been working 
with Tasmania Legal Aid Safe at Home lawyers to 
assist Tasmanian women and children to stay safe in 
family violence situations. 

SafeChoices staff attend Legal Aid sessions with Safe 
at Home lawyers and provide clients with a ‘second set 
of ears’ to listen to expert family violence legal advice 
given by lawyers. 

Our staff are able to support clients and provide 
understanding and compassion to victims/survivors of 
family violence and their children. Clients have found 
this service really beneficial, saying that it is hard to 
take it all in during such a difficult time for them and 
their children.” 

Jacinta Atkins, Manager  
SafeChoices Tasmania

The Family Violence Counselling and 
Support Service
“Tasmania Legal Aid’s Safe at Home Legal Service 
provides a vital and important role in supporting 
people affected by family violence. The Family Violence 
Counselling and Support Service (FVCSS) within the 
Safe at Home partnership works with the lawyers 
across the state daily to ensure that clients of FVCSS 
are informed on a range of matters, including: 

	• Conditions of a Family Violence Order or a Police 
Family Violence Order 

	• Private applications 

	• Court outcomes 

	• Making a statement 

	• Following up with other  Safe at Home partners 

	• Providing general information about Family Court 
matters 

	• Referrals for victim support, such as FVCSS 

A strong collaborative working relationship has 
developed over the years between the TLA Safe 
at Home lawyers and FVCSS with an appreciation 
of the expertise and knowledge that the Safe at 
Home lawyers bring to the service area; they have an 
awareness and insight in the complex area of family 
violence, and are cognisant of the trauma that family 
violence brings. 

Clients of FVCSS comment frequently on their positive 
experience with the TLA Safe at Home lawyers, with 
clients stating that they feel confident that the lawyer 
was committed to getting the best possible outcomes.” 

Jane Fleming, Statewide Manager  
FVCSS and staff

Council of the Ageing (COTA) Tasmania
“For three years, a popular free monthly legal clinic 
hosted by COTA Tasmania has provided a non-
threatening, confidential space for older people to 
talk to Legal Aid’s expert civil lawyers about their legal 
options. More recently, we have referred older people 
to the Commission’s new specialised elder-abuse 
service, Senior Assist, confident they will receive the 
case management we know in so many cases is vital 
to ensuring their rights are protected.” 

Sue Leitch, CEO  
COTA Tasmania

Our Collaborations
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TLA and Women’s Legal Service Tasmania  
working together
Tasmania Legal Aid signed a historic Memorandum of 
Understanding (MoU) with Women’s Legal Service Tasmania 
(WLST) to bring renewed focus on assisting women affected by 
inequality and family violence. The purpose of the MOU was to 
ensure as many women as possible received assistance.

The MoU allows our two organisations to work more closely 
together, helping as many Tasmanian women as possible 
receive assistance with navigating the legal system and better 
coordinating family violence legal services for Tasmanians.

Already Legal Aid and WLST have been working together to 
build a more holistic approach to the legal system among the 
community.

Knowledge sharing has already begun with WLST staff receiving 
training on Family Court affidavits and how to use amicus 
briefings to better support clients.

WLST CEO Yvette Cehtel said the renewed focus on 
collaboration was very positive, and will help address 
unmet community need.

“The two organisations took part in the 16 Days of Action Against 
Gender Violence in Burnie, running workshops to raise awareness 
about violence against women and children.

Together we have also ran clinics at Smithton and provide duty list 
support for women when TLA are unable to act.

TLA and WLST are continuing to advance their collaboration, 
including working toward helping people with legal matters as well 
as underlying health concerns that can arise from dealing with legal 
problems. Both organisations are keen to explore new service delivery 
models and new ways of working to enable us to reach people 
earlier in their interaction with the law.

Together, TLA and WLST are improving the co-ordination of family 
violence legal services to the Tasmanian community. Together 
both services are working to provide a framework for collaboration 
and the exchange of information, pursuing mutual objectives in a 
cost-effective way while sharing skills across a growing professional 
network.”

Yvette Cehtel, CEO  
Women’s Legal Service Tasmania
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WHO ARE WE?

Tasmania Department of Justice  
– Safe at Home
“The ongoing partnership between Tasmania Legal Aid 
and Safe at Home, through dedicated Safe at Home 
Lawyers, has continued to lead to positive outcomes 
for families during 2019-2020. With a focus on working 
with people experiencing family violence, the Safe 
at Home Legal Aid team have demonstrated the 
benefits of subject matter expertise in this area. They 
have supported Safe at Home clients through court, 
but have also provided significant support to victim/
survivors when reporting family violence to police.

In addition to providing front-line legal services, the 
Safe at Home Legal Aid team continue to actively 
engage in the operational and procedural oversight 
of the Safe at Home initiative, through engagement 
in the Safe at Home Interdepartmental Committee 
(IDC). The Safe at Home Legal Aid Practice Manager 
provides a legal lens to discussions regarding practice 
and policy issues around the Government’s criminal 
justice response to family violence, and has actively 
raised practice issues, shared best practice and 
research articles, and ensures the Safe at Home IDC is 
up to date with any changes or developments to legal 
practice in the area of family violence.”

Emily Chase, Senior Consultant  
Safe at Home Coordination Unit  
Department of Justice

Our Collaborations (continued)

Advocacy Tasmania
“Advocacy Tasmania provides support to people living 
with disability or mental illness, older people, people 
who use alcohol or other drugs.

AdvoTas operates the Tasmanian Elder Abuse Helpline 
and values the professional relationship with Tasmania 
Legal Aid that enables an efficient referral pathway 
for older persons to the Legal Aid Senior Assist unit. 
This is an invaluable reciprocal arrangement with a 
Memorandum of Understanding in place. AdvoTas 
discussed Legal Aid Senior Assist with 68% of helpline 
callers in the last financial year.  AdvoTas also works 
collaboratively with Legal Aid for NDIS appeals cases 
and to provide information sessions about elder abuse.”

Nita Joy  
Eleder Abuse Liaison  
Advocacy Tasmania
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Our Reach

2018/19 2019/20 % DIFFERENCE

Preventative Services

Website page visits 585,841 686,536  17.19%

Community Legal Education sessions 75 109  45.33%

Community Legal Education participants 5067 4,378  13.66%

Legal Talk chats 3,465 3,213  7.27%

Telephone advice - number of matters dealt with 21,813 22,621  3.70%

Telephone advice - referrals made 32,675 35,013  7.16%

Early Intervention services

Legal advice and minor assistance 5,031 4,832  3.96%

Family Dispute Resolution (FDR) conferences 395 368  6.84%

Duty Lawyer services

Family Advocacy and Support Service (FASS) 1936 1,811  6.46%

Family Law duty 294 244  17.01%

Civil Law duty 29 42  44.83%

Criminal Law duty 4374 3,776  13.67%

Legal Representation

Grants of Legal Aid 4,905 5,184  5.96%

Total grants to private practitioners ($million) 5.193 5.905  13.71%

Total payments made to private practitioners ($million) 4.826 5.157  6.87%

In-house grants 1,778 2,180  22.61%

% of grants of aid to private lawyers 63.75% 57.95%  5.80%

Applications for legal aid 26,892 30,240  12.45%

Applications for new cases 5,498 5,777  5.07%

Applications to extend existing grants 21,394 24,643  14.35%

Payments  
on grants  
up 6.87%

Website 
page visits  
up 17.19%Grants of 

Legal Aid  
up 5.96%
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WHO ARE WE?

total website page visits

686,536
up 17.19% from 2019

webchats  
average 13 per day 

on Legal Talk

3,213

Our Services

Preventative Services
Our website is a reliable source of legal information with 
fact sheets, self help kits, YouTube videos, Legal Aid 
guidelines and a comprehensive referral list for legal and 
non legal services.

TOP 5 MOST POPULAR WEBSITE FACT SHEETS

Estates 27,535

Boundary fences 21,931

Preparing a plea in mitigation 21,080

Power of Attorney 15,411

Family Violence 12,518

Community Legal  
Education

109 sessions delivered  

reaching 4,378 participants

Legal Talk
Legal Talk is 
an online legal 
information 
service that 
people access 
via our website

TOP 5 REFERRALS MADE VIA TELEPHONE ADVICE LINE

General civil law matters 8,313

General criminal matters 4,099

Children’s matters 3,317

Enquiries about legal aid services 2,145

Property matters 1,165

22,621
matters dealt with

35,031
referrals made

Telephone Advice Line
We provide free and confidential legal advice and 
referrals on our telephone advice line. Anyone in Tasmania 
can call and speak directly to one of our lawyers. It is our 
most widely used service.
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Early Intervention Services

Face to Face Clinic
4,370 individuals received advice, information and 
referral to other services to assist them to resolve their 
issues.

Family Dispute Resolution Service

Duty Lawyer Services
Available at the Magistrates Court, Family Court 
and Federal Cicruit Court, free of charge.

services provided

5,873

Legal Representation
We provide legal representation through grants of aid 
to private lawyers and to in-house lawyers. Most of the 
cases are criminal law, family law, child safety and family 
violence matters.

More than 57% of grants of aid went to private lawyers 
and the balance to in-house lawyers.

30,240
applications for legal aid

5,777
were for new cases,  
24,463 applications  
to extend existing  

grants

Overall settlement rate (full or partial) of  83.97%

368
family dispute 

resolution 
conferences 

held

49
court-ordered 

mediations

22
child inclusive 
conferences

10
ICL  

conferences

Grants

Family Dispute Resolution

Duty Lawyer

Legal Advice

Community Legal Education

Telephone Advice

TOTAL 
CLIENT 

SERVICES

  Telephone advice and referrals (57,634)

  Community Legal Education participants (4,378)

  Legal advice and minor assistance (4,832)

  Duty Lawyer services (5,837)

  Family Dispute Resolution conferences (368)

  Grants of Legal Aid (5,184)

Total Client Services excludes 686,536 total website page visits
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Our Services

Smithton

KING 
ISLANDOur Clients – a snapshot

We help thousands of Tasmanians through our legal services.

5% are from culturally and 
linguistically diverse 
backgrounds

includes people who were born 
overseas or speak a language 

other than English at home

6%
are aged 
over 65

30%
of grants of legal aid 
went to people who 
identify as having a 
disability

11%
were in 
custody

1% required the 
assistance of 
an interpreter

65%
receive 
Government 
benefits

28%
live in 
rural Tasmania

8%
identify as Aboriginal 
or Torres Strait Islander

6%
are aged 
under 18
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WHO ARE WE?

The 2019-20 period brought Tasmania Legal Aid’s 2017-20 
Corporate Plan to a close as we began our new 2020-23 
Strategic Plan.

Overall the now-complete Corporate Plan met its five 
goals but there remain areas we will continue to address 
in our new Strategic Plan.

Goal One
Ensure our priority clients have access to 
legal assistance 
TLA provided access to more services and continues to 
work toward better means testing and targeted services 
based on client data. This will enable us to assist priority 
clients get legal assistance and prioritise our resources in 
the areas of greatest need.  

	• 100% of grants of legal aid went to people of socio-
economic or financial disadvantage, had a disability 
or were elderly Tasmanians  

	• 3,693 grants of legal aid and extensions to existing 
grants, an increase of 15% 

	• Approved 90% of all legal aid grant requests 

	• 5,873 Duty Lawyer services provided 

	• Civil Law Duty Lawyer service increased 45% 

	• Implemented new legal aid grant guidelines 
in response to COVID-19 pandemic to ensure 
vulnerable Tasmanians receiving additional 
government pandemic subsidies were not barred 
when applying for aid  

	• $5.90 million in grants of legal aid to the private 
profession to represent clients, an increase of 14%

Goal Two
Strike an appropriate balance in 
allocating resources between a range of 
services  
Legal Aid struck an appropriate balance in allocating 
resources among our wide-ranging services by providing 
a range of services that are preventative, timely and 
encourage self-help when appropriate. We continue 
to strive for more flexibility in how our services meet our 
clients’ needs in these areas and in providing better 
representation. 

	• Expanded FASS services that combines legal 
and social support to meet the needs of clients 
experiencing family violence

	• 42.5% increase in social support services  

	• Extended clinic services in Launceston to meet 
increasing demand 

	• Senior Assist staff helped 78 older Tasmanians who 
were experiencing or at risk of elder abuse

Goal Three
Deliver high quality and flexible legal 
services that deliver value for money 
We were able to deliver high-quality and flexible legal 
services that provide clients and stakeholders the best 
resources and services at value for money. Legal Aid 
clients are highly satisfied, and we continue to maintain 
our great reputation with our stakeholders and the 
broader community, delivering continuity of service within 
a changing environment.  

	• Referrals from our telephone advice line to other 
services increased by 7% 

	• Helped establish and support the Community Legal 
Education Steering Group with CLC Tas  

	• Held 109 face-to-face community legal education 
sessions delivered to 4,378 participants 

	• Delivered 12 Safe At Home community education 
sessions to 143 participants  

	• 13 COVID-19 Fact Sheets created, accounting for 
over 15,000 pageviews from more than 6,700 unique 
visitors 

Review of our  
2017-20 Corporate Plan 

26 Tasmania Legal Aid  Annual Report 2019–2020



Goal Four
Contribute to the efficiency and 
effectiveness of the justice system
Legal Aid is proud of our contribution to the justice system, 
providing in-depth and appropriate service to those 
with the highest need while advocating appropriate 
outcomes. Our open dialogue process has enhanced our 
positive collaboration with the legal community. We have 
also made inroads toward educating and empowering 
our clients and the wider Tasmanian community while 
delivering a higher percentage of early resolutions in legal 
matters.  

	• 84% of family dispute resolution conferences resulted 
in an agreement, avoiding the need for court action 

	• Increased grants of assistance in legal aid by 5.7%  

	• Worked with the Director of Public Prosecutions to 
achieve timely and appropriate resolution of cases

Goal Five
Be a financially sustainable and 
accountable organisation 
We continue to work towards having sustainable and 
continued funding for our core work while adapting 
and attracting new funding and meeting our funders’ 
expectations. We meet our compliance responsibilities 
while maintaining sufficient reserves, which we detail in 
regular and transparent reporting.  

	• Secured additional Commonwealth funding for 
Senior Assist and the Family Advocacy and Support 
Service 

	• Regular reporting about how we were tracking 
financially 

	• Delivered a balanced result 

	• Appropriate reserves to deal with changes in the 
environment

By engaging employees through surveys and by 
maintaining open feedback channels we continue building 
on our organisational strengths, identify challenges and 
focus on the topics that must be advanced as the new 
Strategic Plan 2020-23 takes flight.

As an organisation, we have a strong shared purpose, 
close alignment between our organisational and personal 
values and overwhelming consistency in job satisfaction.
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2

We provide high quality, 
accessible legal services to 
Tasmanians, especially those 
who are most vulnerable, 
delivered by skilled and 
well supported staff.

How do 
we help?



HOW DO WE HELP?

Civil Law
The Civil Law program expanded this year with a lawyer 
appointed in February to help Tasmanians with legal 
problems that may land them in court. These issues usually 
relate to problems with contracts. 

Our lawyer also advised seniors at our monthly outreach 
clinic with our partner Council on the Ageing Tas (COTA), 
which we run once a month at COTA’s Hobart office. 

Your Story
Your Story Disability Legal Support helps Tasmanians and 
their supporters make submissions to the Disability Royal 
Commission. We are collaborating with the Tasmanian 
Aboriginal Legal Service on this national project.

Collaboration
Your Story is a collaborative national service to provide 
legal advice and assistance to people living with 
disability who want to tell their story to the Disability Royal 
Commission (DRC). This service is a joint project delivered 
by National Legal Aid and National Aboriginal and 
Torres Strait Islander Legal Services and funded by the 
Commonwealth until 30 June 2022.

Tasmania Legal Aid’s Your Story lawyer, David Cocker, is 
working closely with Josie Short from Tasmanian Aboriginal 
Legal Service to reach Tasmanians and help them share 
their story with the Royal Commission. We have made 
connections with a number of advocacy and counselling 
services, and continue to forge relationships with a wide 
range of service providers, peak bodies, government 
agencies and other organisations to promote the service.

Reach
Your Story includes an advice line and a team of mobile 
lawyers. The Tasmanian Your Story arm offers legal advice 
about safely engaging with the DRC to Tasmanians 
living with disability, their carers, family, advocates and 
supporters. We also provide legal advice and assistance 
for ancillary legal matters and a facilitated referral 
program.

Your Story supports the whole of Tasmania with outreach 
around the state, including King and Flinders islands.

Making a Difference 
Your Story has made some promising inroads with a 
range of stakeholders, including with the Department of 
Corrections. This is a significant development because 
not only is prison a tough environment for people with a 
disability, the Disability Royal Commission has identified 
prisons as an area of interest for its investigation.  

It is also a new relationship for TLA’s Civil Law program. 
We have reached an in principle agreement with prison 
administrators to set-up a free advice phone line within 
prisons that will be available once technical details are 
ironed out.  

In the meantime we are educating prisoners about the 
Your Story service and working with prison staff so they 
can help inmates with disabilities tell their stories to the 
DRC. 

How do we help? 
Your Story recently assisted Tony who wanted to 
tell his loved one’s story to the DRC. Tony also had 
an unresolved court application against a service 
provider. Tony had been helped by a law firm free 
of charge, but due to the COVID-19 pandemic they 
could not continue to assist him.  

Your Story assisted Tony to explore and understand 
his options for legal support. He was also offered 
advice and assistance to resolve another problem 
and was grateful for the assistance Your Story 
provided, empowering him to make an informed 
decision about how to proceed. 

We have changed our client’s name and 
some facts to protect their privacy. 
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National Disability Insurance 
Scheme (NDIS)
Collaboration
Our National Disability Insurance Scheme (NDIS) service 
provides advice and representation for Tasmanians 
who are unhappy with a decision made by the National 
Disability Insurance Agency (NDIA). 

Many cases are for people whose application for support 
has been refused by the NDIS or their NDIS plan is not 
enough to support their needs.

This year, we assisted 11 clients appeal NDIA decisions, 
include getting funding for much needed support and 
improved funding packages. These decisions have a huge 
impact on the lives of the people we help.

We work closely with Advocacy Tasmania’s disability 
advocates to get the best support for our clients. 
This collaboration has led to successful outcomes for 
vulnerable Tasmanians.

Reach
The NDIS is about helping Australians with permanent 
illnesses and disabilities get the best quality of life through 
quality care. But for some people, their special needs 
might not be recognised or met when first assessed.

TLA supports people to argue for the NDIS to meet their 
needs, wherever they live in Tasmania. We help vulnerable 
people fight for a better, fairer outcome that suits the 
circumstances of them and their families. 

How do we help? 
Sam is a vibrant young boy with a rare genetic 
condition that affects his muscles, physical 
development and appetite. The impact on Sam and 
his family’s life is significant as he requires round-the-
clock one-to-one supervision and a wheelchair for 
outings. 

Simple things that children enjoy, like birthday parties 
and play dates, became a source of great stress for 
Sam and his parents. His parents applied for NDIS 
funding so Sam could go out during school holidays.

Sam’s application for a wheelchair was refused. 
The family decided to appeal the decision to the 
Administrative Appeals Tribunal (AAT), at which point 
Tasmania Legal Aid stepped in to help.

We helped Sam get funding for a wheelchair and a 
support worker to help him enjoy trips to the park or 
museum. He even went to V8 Supercars to watch his 
favorite driver, Craig Lowndes, who Sam was excited 
to meet. 

We have changed our client’s name and 
some facts to protect their privacy. 
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Senior Assist
Collaboration
Senior Assist is a new elder abuse prevention unit that 
includes a team of lawyers and case managers. We 
provide free legal advice, assistance and support to 
seniors who are experiencing elder abuse. We also provide 
advice and information to prevent elder abuse.

The Senior Assist integrated service model is part of a 
Commonwealth funded project. Senior Assist also receives 
support from the Tasmanian Government. 

Elder abuse is a single, or repeated act, or a lack of 
appropriate action, occurring within any relationship 
where there is an expectation of trust that causes harm or 
distress to an older person. Elder abuse can take various 
forms such as financial, physical, psychological and 
sexual abuse. It can also be the result of intentional or 
unintentional neglect. 

Senior Assist partners with Advocacy Tasmania and its 
Tasmanian Elder Abuse Help Line, Council on the Ageing 
Tas and Relationships Australia Tas. Together we provide 
a better service with referrals, joint community education 
and outreach clinics. We also work closely with many other 
service providers including police, hospital and community 
based social workers, Housing Connect, health care 
professionals, home care package providers, the Public 
Trustee and Public Guardian. 

Working alongside other Legal Aid programs, we 
assist seniors who are not experiencing elder abuse 
but have other civil issues. These include contractual 
disputes, Guardianship Board or Mental Health Tribunal 
proceedings and applications for restraint orders. 

Reach
Senior Assist supports seniors throughout Tasmania and 
can visit people in their home or a safe place. Anyone can 
access Senior Assist if they are 65+ years of age (50+ for 
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander people). 

We: 

	• Help seniors to understand their rights  

	• Support them to make their own decisions  

	• Give legal advice and support to stop elder abuse 

	• Help seniors to report matters to police or other 
agencies 

	• Provide emotional support 

	• Refer seniors to other services 

In 2020, Senior Assist provided 359 services to 78 clients 
who were experiencing or at risk of elder abuse. 

How do we help? 
The Tasmanian Elder Abuse Help Line referred 
90-year-old Robert to Senior Assist. Robert had been 
issued with a legal default notice from a bank for  
$41,000 as he was guarantor on his son’s loan. Robert 
had been coerced to guarantee the loan. 

Senior Assist helped Robert write a letter outlining the 
situation and requesting he be removed as guarantor 
from the loan. He called Senior Assist to say the bank 
had removed him as guarantor and agreed to pay 
him $1,000 for the inconvenience. 

It goes without saying that Robert was delighted 
with this outcome and extremely grateful for our help. 

How do we help? 
Simon, a man in his early 80s distressed by his adult 
son’s behaviour, spoke with Senior Assist. Simon’s son 
was living at his house and abusing him physically, 
emotionally, financially and damaged Simon’s 
property. Simon was stressed and frightened for his 
safety. He did not know what to do.

As there were several significant safety concerns, 
Simon was told to contact the police if he felt unsafe. 
Our case manager and lawyer worked with him for 
several months to help him cope with his situation. 
We worked through his options, providing support 
and counselling so he could make decisions about 
stopping the abuse.

With our support Simon asked his son to leave the 
property and applied for a restraining order. Our Safe 
at Home colleagues helped Simon find a safe area 
at court as he felt extremely vulnerable about seeing 
his son in the waiting room while our Senior Assist 
case manager gave Simon emotional support. Simon 
obtained a 12-month restraining order. Senior Assist 
worked closely with police to ensure his son left his 
property.

“I cannot thank you both enough for your endeavors 
to bring peace to our house,” Simon said. 

We have changed our client’s name and 
some facts to protect their privacy. 

We have changed our client’s name and 
some facts to protect their privacy. 
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Mental Health
Collaboration
Our Mental Health and Disability team works with and 
receives referrals from a wide range of organisations and 
individuals including:

	• Individuals, family members and other Legal Aid 
programs 

	• Hospital and Community Mental Health Services 

	• Advocacy Tasmania 

	• The Public Guardian and Public Trustee 

	• Community Legal Services 

	• Support workers 

A collaborative approach helps us connect with and 
assist many people who may not know they can access 
Legal Aid’s free representation. Our team is committed to 
strengthening these relationships so we can assist more 
people in times of need. 

We work with Advocacy Tasmania on Your Say, a mental 
health representation scheme that helps those who 
might struggle to speak for themselves. Your Say means 
our clients can count on having someone in their corner 
and our organisations can share skills, knowledge and 
resources without waste or duplication.

Reach
We advise and represent Tasmanians involved in Mental 
Health Tribunal and Guardianship and Administration 
Board hearings.  

Our clients include people who are living with a disability 
in the community, hospitals, aged care facilities and group 
homes.   

We also deliver an outreach clinic to patients in the 
psychiatric ward at the Launceston General Hospital 
(although this was affected during the COVID-19 
pandemic). Planning to resume this service is underway. 

With 332 grants of legal aid, a 12% increase, we see that 
demand in this area remains high.

Making a Difference
People often do not understand the legal process. That 
is why they appreciate us explaining what the hearing is 
about, why it is happening and ensuring that their voices 
are heard.

We also gave voice to our clients’ concerns in our 
submission to the Mental Health Act 2013 review.

We focused on a person’s right to make their own 
decisions wherever possible. We spoke about: 

	• Inconsistencies in the law around the processes of 
assessment, examination and treatment which led to 
confusion and poor outcomes for some people

	• People being treated involuntarily when they don’t 
meet the legal test for compulsory treatment

	• Confusion about when someone has decision-
making capacity

	• The test for treatment being set too low

Our submission was highly influential and reflected in the 
review outcomes.

How do we help? 
Charlotte was admitted to a psychiatric ward 
when she experienced a relapse of her mental 
illness. Unable to make decisions about her health 
treatment, a compulsory treatment order was made 
– a first for Charlotte. It meant that she would be 
forced to stay in hospital and take medication.

When her case was to be considered by the Mental 
Health Tribunal, Charlotte felt she had recovered 
and was ready to go home, provided she had 
support from the community mental health team. 
Charlotte was keen to get home as she was her 
elderly mother’s primary carer. But hospital doctors 
disagreed.

Before her hearing, our lawyer walked Charlotte 
through what to expect. Together we were able to 
show how Charlotte’s health had improved so she 
could make decisions about her treatment.

The Tribunal agreed and Charlotte was able to return 
home to care for herself and her mother.

We have changed our client’s name 
and some facts to protect her 
privacy.

We have changed our client’s name and 
some facts to protect their privacy. 
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HOW DO WE HELP?

Collaboration
Through the Safe at Home program we work with  
Tasmania Police, the Family Violence Counselling & 
Support Service, Child Safety Services and the Court 
Support & Liaison Service and others to address the safety 
of victims and their families.  

We make referrals to other services such as Safe Choices, 
the Family Violence Counselling & Support Service, the 
Huon Domestic Violence Service and Engender Equality for 
safety planning, counselling and support, assistance with 
housing and other forms of practical assistance.  

Sharing information helps to ensure a coordinated 
response, better outcome and more efficient use of 
resources. Best of all, collaborating with our partners helps 
people avoid having to tell upsetting details of their story 
over and over again.

Reach 
Our Safe at Home lawyers provide a broad range of 
services to victims of family violence state-wide: 

	• At our four Legal Aid offices and in courts 

	• Through outreach services in the Circular Head area 
and Queenstown, delivered in collaboration with the 
Women’s Legal Service Tasmania  

	• By outreach lawyers visiting women’s shelters, 
community centres and other services  

	• We provide Community Legal Education, such as 
providing several sessions in Burnie during the local 
event for 16 Days of Action to End Gender-Based 
Violence  

	• During COVID-19, we worked on staying connected 
by phone and audio-visual means  

We help people who experience family violence – 
whatever their gender, socio-economic status or cultural 
background. We provide advice and help with family 
violence orders to ensure they are protected. 

The number of reported family violence incidents in 
Tasmania has stayed steady even through COVID-19.  
This means that many people are seeking help. 

This year, our Safe at Home lawyers: 

	• Provided legal advice to 763 clients 

	• Opened 111 grants files 

	• Opened 315 minor assistance files 

	• Provided 40 Duty Lawyer services 

We also delivered 12 community education sessions 
for victims of family violence, workers in the non-legal 
support services who help them and lawyers likely to have 
family violence-affected clients. More than 140 people 
participated in the sessions.

Making a Difference
The Safe at Home lawyers are here to help people 
who have experienced family violence to know what 
their choices are and how legal systems work, and help 
people get good outcomes. In Court, our service’s focus is 
protective orders.

We know not everyone who has experienced family 
violence wants the relationship to end; many would like 
the relationship to continue, but the abuse to stop. If 
protective orders do not allow any contact, they might not 
be what the protected person wants.

Ending relationships is hard, even when the decision 
is mutual. If one person won’t accept the end of the 
relationship or there is abuse or violence, it can be very 
difficult.

It can really help to know what options there are, where 
to seek help and what is involved. Better informing people 
helps them to be less afraid and better able to protect 
themselves and their children. 

Safe at Home
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How do we help?
After Cheryl and Andrew broke up, things did not go 
well: Andrew used drugs; he hit her and other family 
members; he made threats to burn the house down.

Even years later, he continued to follow Cheryl in 
public, calling and telling her he could see what she 
was doing. He told her that during their relationship 
he had downloaded all the photos and videos 
from her phone and he still had them, including an 
intimate video they’d made together.

When Cheryl still didn’t do what Andrew wanted, he 
posted the video on a ‘revenge porn’ site.

Cheryl told police, but at first it was not recognised 
as family violence offending, even though Andrew’s 
behaviour involved stalking and posting the video 
without Cheryl’s permission was an offence too.

The Safe at Home lawyer helped Cheryl get 
an interim Family Violence Order with specific 
instructions that Andrew remove the video. The Safe 
at Home lawyer spoke with Tasmania Police about 
the family violence and the orders.

Andrew didn’t turn up to court and a final order was 
made. He failed to remove the video from the website 
and was charged with breaching the order. Tasmania 
Police have since had the video removed from the 
site.

Cheryl has not had any more trouble since the 
final Family Violence Order was made. She was 
happy with the result, and felt she would not have 
succeeded without our help.

We have changed our client’s name and 
some facts to protect their privacy.
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HOW DO WE HELP?

Advice and Legal Services 
(ALS)
Collaboration
Advice & Legal Services (ALS) provides general advice, 
information and referrals to thousands of Tasmanians, 
often as their first step toward legal aid assistance. By 
helping people get answers to legal questions and 
concerns early we support the timely resolution of legal 
problems.

We openly and actively engage with our clients, provide 
referrals to appropriate services, and work with our 
community partners.

Reach
Our frontline services are open to all members of the 
Tasmanian public through: 

	• Telephone Advice Line 

	• Face-to-face drop in clinic services 

	• Legal Talk, an online chat service 

ALS delivered 22,621 telephone advice services and 
referred 35,013 callers to other services. We helped 3,213 
people through Legal Talk and delivered clinic advice 
services to 4,370 people. 

ALS services continued despite COVID-19 restrictions. 
While offices were closed the face-to-face service 
adapted to become “contactless”. This meant that 
anyone anywhere in the state could still get help. 
Contactless clinics continue to be offered alongside the 
face-to-face option.  

All ALS services provided by our team are confidential and 
free of charge.

Making a Difference
We take a holistic approach to problem solving. In addition 
to giving Tasmanians legal information we refer our callers 
to other support services that can help address their needs.

We see that when people gain new knowledge and skills 
and get much-needed support in other aspects of their 
lives, they are better empowered to resolve their problems.

Typical examples of early intervention include:

	• People with mortgage stress or other debt issues 

	• Questions about how to create a binding 
superannuation nomination  

	• Drafting letters on someone’s behalf that help 
address debt situations  

Often that first step starts with a call to ALS.

Many people are confused about 
which legal service offers the help they 
need. To address this prevalent issue, 
managers of the Hobart Community 
Legal Service and TLA’s Advice & Legal 
Services hold staff meetings to enable 
streamlined referrals, prepare clients 
for appointments and to keep abreast 
of changes.

Tasmanians appreciate public 
funds being used effectively by not 
duplicating services and those that are 
disadvantaged especially appreciate 
not being on a roundabout of referrals.

Jane Hutchison  
Director,  
Hobart Community Legal Service

36 Tasmania Legal Aid  Annual Report 2019–2020



How do we help? 
Jane, a young mother, had never been in trouble with the law before. 

Out one night, a girlfriend got into a drunken fight. Police arrived and 
arrested the friend. Jane stepped in thinking she would try to protect 
her. Instead she was charged with Disorderly Conduct and given a court 
summons. 

Jane had been couch-surfing with her baby at a friend’s house after an 
argument with her parents. 

A police officer suggested Jane contact Legal Aid. When she arrived at 
the clinic she was crying, frightened and had no idea what steps she 
needed to take to keep her freedom and her baby. 

Jane was overwhelmed by her situation. The ALS lawyer took the time 
to reassure Jane she had come to the right place before asking her 
about the charge and explaining the court process. The lawyer looked 
at the whole picture and helped Jane break it down into smaller parts 
so she could address each one in turn. 

The lawyer contacted police to get the court paperwork so Jane could 
have everything ready for when she went to court. 

The ALS lawyer found out Jane had been seeing a psychologist for 
many years to treat anxiety and mental illness. The lawyer told Jane 
that a letter from her psychologist about this could help her case. 

As Jane was not at risk of going to prison she was connected with the 
local Community Legal Centre (CLC) to have someone represent her on 
her day in court. 

With Legal Aid help gathering the police documents, a letter from her 
psychologist, and organising a CLC duty lawyer, Jane was able to face 
court and got a 12-month good behavior bond but no conviction or 
fine. 

Legal Aid and the CLC also helped Jane secure supported 
accommodation for her and her baby. Jane is now studying social work 
at TAFE and hopes to help young people deal with life’s challenges.

We have changed our client’s name and 
some facts to protect their privacy
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HOW DO WE HELP?

Community Legal Education 
and Information (CLEI)
Collaboration
Community Legal Education and Information (CLEI) 
is Tasmania Legal Aid’s community engagement and 
education program. 

A focus of our work is educating young Tasmanians about 
the law, in particular about potential legal pitfalls of life 
online, such as cyber bullying, sexting and how to use 
technology safely. 

Through our website, social media and Community 
Legal Education (CLE) sessions we reach hundreds of 
thousands of Tasmanians every year. One of our greatest 
tools are our CLE sessions, when we visit schools and talk 
with students face-to-face, empowering them to better 
understand how the law affects their lives and helping 
them to navigate through life and the legal system. 

We participated in a Mental Wellness Day Expo at 
Kingston High School with other service providers. We 
engaged with approximately 700 students, teachers and 
parents during the day to raise awareness of Legal Aid 
services, particularly our CLEI program. 

The event built on our existing relationship with the school 
and was a great opportunity to engage with students 
outside the classroom. We were also able to introduce 
ourselves to primary students making the transition to 
high school in the new school year, a crucial period in their 
personal development. 

 

Reach 
	• 109 face-to-face community legal education 

sessions delivered to 4,378 participants 

	• 686,536 website hits 

	• 91,649 Fact Sheet views 

Top five fact sheets 
	• Estates 

	• Boundary Fences 

	• Preparing a plea in mitigation 

	• Power of Attorney 

	• Family Violence

Top five COVID-19 fact sheets 
	• Funerals and Weddings During COVID-19 

	• Leaving Home During COVID-19 

	• Renting During COVID-19 

	• Will Making and COVID-19 

	• Court Appearances During COVID-19 
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How do we help? 
Hobart College  
March-April 2020 

“As part of our Home Group Program at Hobart 
College, we have been fortunate to have Stuart 
Davey from Legal Aid visit and present to our 
students about how to keep safe when online. The 
presentation was invaluable in highlighting to our 
young adults how, in the 21st century, it is so easy for 
them to become a target in an online environment. 
Stuart was also able to explain to them what their 
legal rights are and how they are able to access 
assistance if they ever find themselves in a situation 
where they require support. We are incredibly 
grateful to Stuart and Legal Aid for providing this 
fantastic service that allows our students to learn 
about issues that will be so important to them both 
during and beyond their formal schooling years.” 

Lou Christie  
Teacher 
Hobart College, Hobart 

How do we help? 
SPACE for Learning 
August 2019 

“Matt Hills was fantastic. He was able to craft a 
message for our cohort of students by combining 
humour, examples and an informal but focused 
presentation and encouraged questions as the 
session progressed. Matt really engaged the students 
(which can be often difficult!). 

I would highly recommend Matt to present to other 
Tier 4 programs throughout Tasmania.” 

Norm Symmons  
Community Liaison Officer  
Space Learning Program, Devonport

Making a Difference 
With the COVID-19 pandemic impacting so many aspects 
of our lives, CLEI was limited in how it could deliver 
education in the usual settings. We were unable to speak 
with people through face-to-face engagement and had 
to adapt our processes. 

We responded by providing information on how COVID-19 
restrictions would impact individual rights, what new laws 
had been introduced and how the practice of the legal 
profession had adapted. 

Responding to the rapidly changing situation, our 
COVID-19 resources were regularly updated to reflect 
the changing legal and social situation. We created 13 
Coronavirus specific fact sheets dealing with issues as 
broad as employment rights, child care arrangements, 
tenancy issues as well as weddings and funerals. 

With schools closed we invested our time into research 
and development. During the pandemic lockdown, data 
indicated there was an increase in cyber-related issues 
concerning young people. As a response the CLEI team 
developed a new online learning module on cyber safety, 
bullying and sexting and commenced testing this with 
selected schools. Being Cyber Safe combines videos, 
animation and online activities to help reinforce key 
messages about the problems and pitfalls young people 
might encounter in the online space – and how they can 
get help when needed. 

Research into teenage online behaviour indicates that 
young people are sexting less than 5 years ago, which 
can be attributed to greater education around the risks of 
sexting. It’s incredibly satisfying that our CLE sessions are 
having an impact on young people in our community. 
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HOW DO WE HELP?

Family Dispute Resolution 
(FDR)
Collaboration 
The Family Dispute Resolution (FDR) program is thriving 
thanks to our working relationship with many legal and 
non-legal service providers across Tasmania. 

Participants in our FDR Conferences are provided 
with legal assistance - before, during and after their 
conference - by Legal Aid lawyers and private legal 
practitioners. 

Our Child Inclusive Practice collaborates with Child 
Consultants around the state to offer parents a model of 
conferencing where we consider children’s views. 

Our Court Ordered Mediations provide participants with 
the opportunity to return to the conference room with their 
lawyers to try and reach an agreement that they can tell 
the Judge about. 

Our Conference Coordinators and Chairpersons help 
participants seek assistance for many social, non-legal 
issues as we recognise that our participants often require 
more than just legal assistance. 

 

Reach 
The FDR program is continually looking at ways to expand 
the services we offer and how participants can access 
our service. Our program offers flexibility in many varied 
ways and seeks to improve so we can provide the best 
service and opportunity for participants to resolve their 
disagreements. 

Conferences can be carried out in a range of formats, 
from face-to-face, shuttle, telephone link, and now video 
conferencing. Video conferencing has been a great 
success, especially since the COVID-19 pandemic, with 
many participants from regional and remote areas of 
Tasmania now able access our service and participate in 
conferences at home. 

In January 2020 Tasmania Legal Aid embarked on a 
two-year trial offering Property Mediation in the FDR 
program. The trial has been extremely successful with 
106 parties participating and receiving legal advice 
and assistance regarding their financial and property 
settlement. The mediation program has already seen high 
rates of settlement with participants favouring the informal 
conference to the courtroom setting. 

 

The value of Child Inclusive practice in FDR 

I am passionate about giving children a voice in situations where separated parents are making 
decisions about their children’s arrangements and have worked for TLA as an independent 
Child Consultant for a number of years. 

All parents want to do the best for their children but in those situations where parents are either 
uncertain about or have differing views on their children’s needs, Child Inclusive (CI) mediation can 
provide a way forward. Not only can CI provide evidence-based information, it can also serve as a 
reality check for lawyers and their clients and streamline the FDR process. 

One particular strength of Child Inclusive mediation is that it enables involved professionals to work 
together as a team - FDR conference chair, lawyers and the child consultant - offering tangible, 
knowledge-based interventions to assist parents in their decision making. 

All too often children may be confused and uncertain about their wishes or caught up in the trauma 
of divided parental loyalty. The CC is able to make recommendations based not just on children’s 
expressed wishes but also on what is likely to be developmentally appropriate and reflect their needs. 

Marianne Robertson  
Child Consultant 
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Making a Difference 
Each year FDR helps hundreds of Tasmanian families and 
couples with their parenting arrangements. 

Family separation can be extremely stressful and 
emotional, so it is important matters relating to children 
are discussed and agreed upon as soon as possible. 

The FDR program provides parties an opportunity to 
come together with their lawyers and an independent 
chairperson soon after separation. This provides a safe 
setting where separated couples can work toward an 
agreement that is in the best interests of the children. 

We know the best arrangements for children are the ones 
parents make themselves. That’s why we continue to see 
very high rates of settlement through this program. 

Last year 368 FDR conferences were held, with 84% either 
fully or partially settled. 

We also conducted 49 court ordered mediations, 22 child 
inclusive conferences and 10 Independent Children’s 
Lawyer conferences. 

Endorsement of FDRs from  
Federal Court Judge Terry McGuire 

Judge McGuire highly commends the Family 
Dispute Resolution conferences that are 
conducted by Legal Aid. They are conducted in 
a very timely and professional manner. 

He applauds the excellent settlement rate they 
accomplish saving the parties the time and 
expense of a trial in the Federal Circuit Court. 
Parties are more content in the knowledge they 
have settled their matter themselves without a 
Judge having to make their decisions for them 
that either one/or both may not be happy with. 

– �From the Chambers of Judge Terry McGuire  
Federal Circuit Court of Australia  
Launceston & Melbourne Registry 

We have changed our clients’ names and 
some facts to protect their privacy 

How do we help? 
Tom and Fiona separated one year ago. They have 
three children together aged 6, 9 and 12. While 
they were able to work out some parenting matters 
between themselves there were some important 
matters they could not agree on. 

Through Tasmania Legal Aid’s Family Dispute 
Resolution program Tom and Fiona were able 
to come together with their lawyers and an 
independent Chairperson and discuss matters 
relating to their children. Being able to talk about 
co‑parenting, the children’s development, and how 
to create a path for communication enabled Tom 
and Fiona to reach a parenting agreement. 

Having resolved parenting matters they were able 
to focus on their financial and property matters. 
Tom and Fiona discussed this with their lawyers and 
both of them received a grant of legal aid through 
Tasmania Legal Aid’s Property Mediation Trial. 

They each received legal advice and assistance from 
their lawyers about the value of their assets, their 
income and liabilities, and how the courts deal with 
these cases. 

Tom and Fiona came together once again with their 
lawyers and a conference Chairperson to negotiate 
how to divide their finances. The informal, calm 
environment proved effective and once again Tom 
and Fiona reached an agreement. 

TLA’s FDR program provided Tom and Fiona with 
the opportunity to raise and discuss all matters 
relating to their separation. They were able to 
reach agreement about caring for their children 
and dividing their property, all while receiving legal 
advice and assistance every step of the way. 
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HOW DO WE HELP?

Collaboration 
The Australian Government and National Legal Aid joined 
us to launch amica, a ground-breaking online service to 
help separating couples resolve their differences. 

The amica program helps couples reach amicable 
agreements about property settlements and parenting 
arrangements. It is a secure digital service developed by 
National Legal Aid and Tasmania Legal Aid. 

We also launched the Family Violence and 
Cross‑examination Scheme In September 2019, which 
provides legal representation for people who have been 
banned from personally cross-examining their former 
partner in Family Law trials. 

The Commonwealth-funded scheme stops alleged 
perpetrators from personally cross-examining their victims. This 
helps victims give evidence free of perpetrator intimidation 
and reduces the risk of victims being re‑traumatised. 

We developed a specialist register of lawyers to do this 
important work, also training them on how to better 
respond to men who use family violence. 

Our lawyers contributed to policy, law reform and 
professional development in the family law sector, 
including: 

	• National Legal Aid – Family Law Working Group 

	• The Family Law Practitioner’s Association (including 
Child Safety sub-committee), Law Society Family 
Law Committee, Family Law Pathways Network, 
Family Law Courts – Child Safety Committee, 
Case Management Committee and Family Violence 
Consultative Committee 

	• Collaborating with The Women’s Legal Service to 
deliver educational material about family law and 
family violence to students at Elizabeth College 

	• Submitting a paper to the Council of Attorneys 
General – Family Violence Working Group on options 
for improving the family violence competency of 
legal practitioners 

	• Working group for Anglicare’s Social Action and 
Research Centre for the Rebalancing the Scales 
report 

Reach 
We deliver a range of services in Family Law and in Child 
Safety cases to Tasmanians across the state; in our four 

offices, at Family Law Courts and through our private 
profession partners. 

While our clients are diverse in their location, age, cultural 
backgrounds and needs, family violence is a concerning 
and prevalent issue for the children and parents we help. 
The review of the Family Law System by the Australian Law 
Reform Commission identified: 

	• 60% of separated families reported experiencing 
family violence 

	• Up to 70% of parents reported their children had 
been exposed to family violence 

	• Of people who went to court, 85% reported emotional 
abuse and 54% reported being physically hurt 

Data indicates that approximately 79% of people accessing 
Legal Aid Family Services have experienced family violence. 
The COVID-19 pandemic has contributed to an increase 
in family violence. The Australian Institute of Criminology 
reported that for many women, the pandemic coincided 
with the onset or escalation of violence and abuse. Two-
thirds of women who experienced physical or sexual 
violence by a current or former partner since the start of 
the COVID-19 pandemic said the violence had started or 
escalated. Many women, particularly those experiencing 
more serious or complex forms of violence and abuse, 
reported safety concerns were a barrier to seeking help. 

The pandemic has also seen an increase in people going 
to the Family Law Courts with the Courts reporting in April 
a 39% increase in people filing in the Family Court and a 
23% increase of those filing in the Federal Circuit Court 
over a four week period in March and April. 

The impacts of increased family violence and increased 
demand for access to court have led to increased 
demand for legal aid family law services. 

	• 30.6% increase in family law applications approved 
compared to 2018–19

	• $2,632,877 paid to private lawyers to represent 
children and parents, an increase of 9.6%

	• 57% increase in the representation of children (ICLs) in 
family law cases

Despite the increase in demand for family law services, we 
experienced a 24% drop in State child protection party 
and Separate Representative cases. The demand for 
service for child protection this year was similar to that for 
the 2017–18 year, after a 25% spike in 2018–19. 

Family
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Making a Difference 
I just wanted to take the time to write to you about my 
legal aid lawyer.

I’m really not sure how I can put into words just how 
incredible I think she is, not only as a lawyer but as a 
person too. She is so professional and yet so beautiful in 
nature and continues to put me and my children as her 
number one priority at all times. Her efforts reach above 
and beyond. She fights for me and she has never given 
up on me. She is my rock.

I suffer severe anxiety and I know she will protect me and 
yet keep it completely professional all at the same time.  
She has made my anxiety ease with each court process 
that I have had to endure.

She is so reassuring and kind hearted and she works 
around the clock to get things done to the highest of 
standards for me and the children.

I have so much trust in her and how she handles my case. 
I am so happy I was able to be given the privilege of such 
a wonderful and incredibly intelligent woman to fight for 
the rights of myself and my three children.

She is always one step ahead and looking deep into 
situations and making sure that she has everything 
needed and known, so I have my case heard correctly.  
She is my voice when my voice fails me. She is strong 
minded and strong at heart the most professional and 
kind woman I have ever known. 

She guides me and helps me with every single dreaded 
thing I have to face. She makes me feel like she is right 
there beside me, making it possible for me to step 
forward with more and more courage each and every 
day. She is more than a lawyer. She is a gift.

She is extraordinary in every single way and I just really 
wanted to reach out, because she deserves to be 
acknowledged for the incredibly talented and beautiful 
woman that she is. She has made my life a thousand 
times over more easy to bear and without her I wouldn’t 
be as strong as I am today.

She truly is the most exceptional lawyer. I will forever 
be grateful that I was lucky enough to have her 
represent me.

Anonymous, from a client 

How do we help? 
Dane and Angie separated when their daughter 
Chantelle was only two years old. It wasn’t an easy 
separation and Dane applied for legal aid so he 
could see his daughter regularly. Legal Aid helped 
with mediation and Dane and Angie reached an 
agreement that became Court Orders. 

As Chantelle got older they agreed to get new Court 
Orders so Dane could spend time with his daughter. 

Last year Dane wanted the arrangements changed 
to fit better around his casual job. 

Angie was accommodating at first but then stopped 
sending Chantelle. She said the Orders weren’t clear 
about Dane’s working arrangements. Unhappy with 
the situation, Angie applied to suspend the Orders. 

Dane was stressed and struggling with the 
separation from his daughter. Angie was anxious and 
stressed about the court hearing. Chantelle was sad 
about not seeing her dad, and for her mum, who was 
not herself. 

The Court decided Chantelle needed a voice and 
asked that she be represented by a Legal Aid-
appointed Independent Children’s Lawyer (ICL). 

Chantelle told her ICL how she was feeling and what 
she hoped would happen. 

Chantelle’s ICL arranged a Court Ordered Mediation 
and acted as Chantelle’s voice in the room. The ICL 
and the mediator helped Dane and Angie identify 
their problems and come up with their own solutions. 

They agreed Chantelle would spend time with Dane 
again and that the ICL would stay involved with the 
family and help if any problems arose. They agreed 
to meet again in three months’ time and to stop the 
court case if all went well after six months. 

All were happy with the outcome as they found their 
own solutions without the stress of a court hearing. 

Today, Chantelle is happy because now she sees her 
mum and dad. And Dane and Angie are less stressed 
and anxious because they found a solution together. 

We have changed our clients’ names and 
some facts to protect their privacy 
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HOW DO WE HELP?

Family Advocacy & Support 
Service (FASS)
Collaboration 
Family Advocacy and Support Service (FASS) collaborates 
with many different agencies to streamline referrals, 
provide service information and coordinate and improve 
service delivery for clients and families affected by family 
violence. These include: 

	• SafeChoices 

	• Strong Families Safe Kids – Communities TAS 

	• Jireh House 

	• Positive Solutions 

	• Community Corrections 

	• Relationships Australia 

	• Salvation Army 

	• Laurel House 

	• Kentish House 

	• Tas Tafe 

	• Mission Australia 

	• The Migrant Resource Centre 

	• Your Town 

	• Tasmania Police – Family Violence Unit 

	• Yang and Gain Network 

	• Men’s Resources Tasmania 

	• Dads in Distress 

	• Defendant Liaison Services 

FASS contributes to: 

	• Family Law Courts – Family Violence Consultative 
Committee, Child Safety Committee and Case 
Management Committee 

	• The Family Law Practitioners Association of Tasmania 

	• The Tasmanian Pathways Network 

	• North West Forum Service Providers 

FASS delivered family violence training in partnership with 
Anglicare Tasmania. The ‘No to Violence’ training gave 
lawyers and social workers strategies on working with men 
who use family violence. 

Reach 
FASS is an integrated service providing legal and social 
support for families affected by family violence in need of 
family law help. 

This wrap-around service recognises that people have 
legal and social needs and addresses both. 

We partner with Anglicare to deliver this Commonwealth 
funded service. 

The FASS Men’s Unit, launched in August 2019, provides 
dedicated social support services to men. It works 
alongside the FASS Women’s Unit in keeping families 
supported and safe. 

FASS typically delivers services at Family Law Courts, Legal 
Aid Offices and Anglicare offices. However, the COVID-19 
pandemic closed public access to courts and offices. FASS 
quickly transitioned to offering remote services, which 
clients quickly embraced. The efficient transition enabled 
FASS to continue service delivery with minimal disruption. 

While many services saw declines due to COVID-19 
restrictions, FASS Duty Lawyer services only dropped by 
6% overall, and services to men increased 42%. 

FASS Duty Lawyer delivered 1,810 service and FASS 
Social Support Workers delivered 1,287 services. Women 
represent 73% of those helped and men 27%. The primary 
services delivered by social support workers were safety 
assessments, safety planning and counselling. 

Social support workers made 435 referrals, a 33% increase 
on last year. The referrals were primarily to family violence 
and counselling services. 
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Making a Difference 
In 2020 Anglicare Tasmania and Tasmanian Legal 
Aid continued their partnership to deliver the Family 
Advocacy and Support Service (FASS). Anglicare’s 
court-based family violence support workers 
provided trauma-informed and high-quality social 
support services to 553 families affected by family 
violence, so that non-legal issues (that elevate the 
risk of family violence, such as drug and alcohol use, 
mental illness and homelessness) were identified 
and addressed alongside the legal issues. With the 
introduction of the program to support men there 
were 160 more families who have accessed support 
during 2019-20 compared to the previous year. 
With the stresses related to COVID-19 there has 
been additional strains on families and reported 
increases in incidents of family violence. The FASS 
program has been invaluable in these times for 
providing a well-respected service to support 
families in difficult times. 

Noel Mundy  
General Manager  
Housing and Community Services 

How do we help? 
Talia was referred to FASS by Strong Families Safe 
Kids. She suffers from a chronic health condition and 
was in hospital following a significant physical assault 
by Tim, her partner and father of 5-year-old Ollie. 

Talia was told she would be in hospital for a while as 
her recovery from the assault had been complicated 
by her chronic health condition. She was on heavy 
pain medication. 

The FASS coordinator found out Talia’s partner was 
on remand and was not about to be released. She 
also learnt that Talia did not have a safe place to 
live after leaving hospital. The coordinator identified 
that Talia’s social needs were the most pressing and 
arranged for the FASS Social Support worker to see 
her at the hospital. 

The FASS Social Support worker met with Talia and her 
mother Lyn. Lyn too had been assaulted by Tim and 
was hospitalised. She asked for an early discharge to 
care for Ollie while Talia remained in hospital. 

The Social Support worker developed a safety plan 
for Ollie, mum and grandma. It included helping Talia 
find a safe house for her and Ollie and explored safe 
places and respite care options for Ollie when Talia 
was unwell. 

The support worker used a FASS information sharing 
protocol to help Talia confirm details of a Violence 
Order to protect her and Ollie. They also helped 
Lyn to talk with police about safety planning for the 
family leading up to Tim’s release from prison. 

Due to the significant history of family violence the 
FASS lawyer advised Talia to apply for sole parental 
responsibility of Ollie and bar Tim from spending time 
with him. 

As well as getting an aid grant for a private lawyer to 
help with court orders, FASS developed a safety plan 
for Talia, Ollie and Lyn and found them safe housing. 
We also helped arrange counselling with family 
violence services support so Talia, her mum and her 
son could re-establish and rebuild their family safely 
at home and together. 

We have changed our clients’ names and 
some facts to protect their privacy
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Criminal
Reach 
Our legal and therapeutic court services include: 

	• Duty Lawyer services for any person remanded in 
custody anywhere in Tasmania 

	• Court Duty Lawyer services for any person appearing 
in court in Launceston, Devonport and Burnie 

	• Outreach lawyers in the regional courts of St Helens, 
Scottsdale, Smithton, Queenstown, Whitemark and 
Currie 

	• In depth representation in hearings in all Tasmanian 
Magistrates and Supreme Courts 

	• Dedicated Youth Justice lawyers for the Youth 
Justice Court 

	• Specialised lawyers for the Court Mandated Drug 
Diversion Program 

	• Specialised lawyers for the Mental Health Diversion 
List 

	• Representation for all Defendants subject to orders 
under s8A of the Evidence (Children and Special 
Witnesses) Act 2001. 

Our priority is early intervention throughout the criminal 
justice system. We work hard to uncover and fix the 
underlying causes of offending behaviour by getting our 
clients the help they need to be happy and healthy in 
our society. Homelessness, drug and alcohol abuse, and 
inadequately managed mental health problems are 
still the most common problems leading to offending 
behaviour. 

We focus on early resolution of legal problems, 
communicating daily with prosecutors to bring cases to a 
close quickly. When prosecutors play hardball, we fight just 
as hard for our clients. 

When a child gets into trouble we work hard and fast to 
keep them out of the court system. We know diverting 
troubled kids away from criminal activity and the criminal 
justice system, and back to school and pro-social 
activities, is the best overall outcome. Across all our client 
groups, youth justice has the lowest rate of repeat clients. 

Duty solicitor services: 3,773 

Our Duty Lawyer helped 3,776 clients throughout the 2019-
20 period. 

In addition to the Duty Lawyer service, our in-house 
lawyers represented a further 1,070 clients in the 
Magistrates Court, including 221 children, who received a 
grant of legal aid. 

We also provided funding to 1,507 people who were 
represented by private lawyers. 

In the Supreme Court our in-house lawyers represented 
100 clients, while a further 275 were represented by private 
lawyers. This was a 28% increase in the number of people 
represented in the Supreme Court in the previous year. 

We paid $2,390,339 to the private lawyers who helped 
people with criminal matters, a 3.3% increase from the 
$2,310,891 paid in 2018-19. 

Collaboration 
We know the best way to reduce offending, and the best 
way to keep all Tasmanians safe, is through community 
based sentencing. 

We work hard with Community Corrections, the Court 
Mandated Drug Diversion Program, Forensic Mental Health 
Services and Youth Justice Services to keep as many of 
our clients as possible out of the courts and prison system. 

We work with our partners to provide a holistic service, 
helping clients address underlying health, social and 
economic problems that negatively impact their lives and 
wellbeing and contribute to their offending behaviour. 
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How do we help? 
Tim was a 32 year old tradesman who lived with his 
partner and two children. His mother passed away 
from cancer in 2018, leaving him with no remaining 
older relatives. He had a close relationship with his 
mother and her death affected him deeply. 

Unable to process his grief, he turned to alcohol. His 
heavy drinking led to arguments in the family home. 
He threatened his partner, leading to a Police Family 
Violence Order. He had to vacate the family home 
and stopped going to work. Within a few months 
he was unemployed, sleeping in his car and facing 
charges for breaching the family violence order. 

Legal Aid helped put Tim in contact with a grief 
counsellor, a drug and alcohol rehabilitation service 
and a family violence offender program through the 
Defendant Health Liaison Service. He gained control 
of his drinking and an insight into how harmful his 
behaviour was to his partner, their children and 
himself. After a few months of therapy he came to 
terms with his mother’s passing. His criminal matters 
were also resolved. The Magistrate was impressed 
at how far he had come, and considered his risk of 
reoffending to be very low. He has now been sober for 
four months and is back working.

We have changed our client’s names and 
some facts to protect their privacy
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Grants

Collaboration  
In all areas of Grants, we employ a collaborative 
approach with private practitioners as it is the most 
effective strategy for streamlining applications and 
ensuring vulnerable Tasmanians are assisted. 

Reach 
We provide grants of legal aid to people who:  

	• Cannot afford a lawyer  

	• Meet our eligibility criteria  

	• Are experiencing a legal problem covered by our 
grants funding program  

A grant of legal aid provides fees to a lawyer to give legal 
advice, prepare legal documents, and represent clients in 
court or dispute resolution processes. We help with certain 
types of criminal, family, children’s and civil law matters. 
TLA’s Guidelines determine whether a person is eligible for 
a grant of aid based on:  

	• Their financial situation  

	• The type of legal problem  

	• How successful the case is likely to be

Clients with a grant of legal aid can be helped by a 
lawyer employed by TLA or a lawyer on one of TLA’s 
practitioner panels or registers. 

We use an online grants management system (called 
E-Lodge) to process applications for grants of legal aid. 
Lawyers submit applications via E-Lodge on behalf of 
their clients which are assessed by TLA officers. A client 
who has been refused aid can request an independent 
review of the decision.   

This year there were 5,777 new applications for legal aid, 
and 24,643 applications to extend those initial grants of 
aid. This work is undertaken by one Grants Support Officer 
and one Grants Officer daily, and the average number of 
applications processed is about 120 per day. Legal aid 
grant applications have continued to see growth each 
year. New applications increased by 5% and extensions of 
aid by 14% since 2018-19. 

In 2019–20, 90% of applications were approved, and 58% 
of grants of legal aid were for people represented by 
private lawyers, at a cost of $5.905 million.  

91% of all new matters in Criminal Law were approved; 84% 
of all new Family Law applications were approved; and 
93% of all new Civil Law applications (includes child safety, 
family violence, mental health and NDIS matters) were also 
approved. 

Making a Difference 
Responding to the global effects of the Coronavirus 
pandemic, the Grants team implemented a number of 
changes to ensure its services remained accessible: 

	• A new guideline was created to ensure vulnerable 
Tasmanians were not disadvantaged from being 
able to access legal aid services. Additional 
Government COVID-19 financial payments increased 
the level of income support some Tasmanians 
received, despite many being affected by job and 
income losses. This affected their eligibility against 
the means test for a grant of legal aid.  The new 
guideline enabled the TLA to disregard some types 
of the COVID-19 financial assistance in assessing 
eligibility for aid.   
 

	• To comply with social distancing requirements 
practitioners were increasingly providing services 
by telephone and email. TLA had to adapt and 
changed its processes to no longer require clients’ 
physical signature on applications for assistance. 
Practitioners were enabled to take the required 
declarations by phone instead of having the 
application form signed in person.  

Private practitioners play an important role in delivering 
legal services to vulnerable Tasmanians. In long standing 
recognition of this and to maintain the value of fees paid 
to them, in 2020 Tasmania Legal Aid undertook work to 
increase the hourly rate paid to legal practitioners by 2%.  

Reviewing the decisions of grants officers 
Any person can ask for an independent review of a grants 
officer’s decision to refuse an application for legal aid. 

The Review Committee can affirm, vary or set aside the 
decision of a grants officer. In the 2019-20 period, 54 
decisions were reviewed (less than 1% of applications) 
and 19 were varied – just over one third (35%) of reviewed 
decisions. 
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Often a decision is varied because the Review Committee 
is given additional information or more information about 
the individual’s situation than was available to the initial 
grants officer. 

The Review Committee’s decisions often play an 
educational role, helping people to better understand 
Tasmania Legal Aid grant guidelines, which can help them 
to better articulate their case. 

The committee provides regular reports to TLA on social 
and legal trends, as well as other relevant information 
obtained through review process. 

Over the 2019-20 period there were 12 members of 
the Review Committee, with each review  conducted 
by a panel  - a private lawyer, a Legal Aid lawyer and 
a stakeholder who is not a lawyer but has relevant 
qualifications or experience in the justice system.  

We thank the Review Committee members for their 
commitment to this role throughout the 2019-20 period. 

Legal Aid Lawyers 
Edwina Gelston (TLA) 

Patrick Fitzgerald (TLA) 

Vaia Harradine (TLA) 

Pip Monk (TLA) 

Community Members 
Jane Hutchison (Hobart Community Legal Services) 

Kym Goodes (TasCOSS & 3P Advisory) 

Nicky Snare (Launceston Community Legal Centre) 

Private Lawyers 
Frances Di Giovanni 

Natalie Everett 

Tony FitzGerald 

Craig Mackie 

Chris Young

Civil Disbursement Fund
We also manage the Civil Disbursement Fund (CDF) 
on behalf of the State Government. The CDF provides 
financial assistance for people who have a personal injury 
or worker’s compensation claim and cannot afford to 
cover costs such as expert reports and witness expenses 
in their case.

There were 36 new applications to the CDF for 
assistance, compared to 21 last year. 
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Solicitor, Barrister & Counsel 
Grants Payments

Milton & Meyer (Closed) Criminal $862.80

Total $862.80

Andrei Slicer Criminal $134,209.11

Total $134,209.11

Baker Wilson Davies Lawyers Civil $2,665.45

Criminal $10,706.30

Family $23,884.98

Total $37,256.74

Barclay Churchill Chambers Civil $771.40

Criminal $1,541.40

Total $2,312.80

Bishops Civil $29,584.00

Criminal $12,332.50

Family $159,111.69

Total $201,028.19

Blissenden Lawyers Civil $990.00

Criminal $26,932.80

Family $5,810.00

Total $33,732.80

Bold Lawyers Civil $1,550.00

Criminal $54,966.10

Total $56,516.10

Butler McIntyre & Butler Civil $57,786.80

Criminal $147,307.98

Family $108,530.40

Total $313,625.18

Cameron Scott - Barrister at Law Criminal $19,185.00

Total $19,185.00

Cann Legal Civil $24,718.80

Criminal $7,361.80

Family $60,351.30

Total $92,431.90

Caroline Graves Barrister at Law Civil $35,823.20

Criminal $93,599.20

Family $6,860.00

Total $136,282.40

Carswell & Company Solicitors Family $780.00

Total $780.00

Payments to private legal firms, between 1 July 2019 and 30 June 2020  
(not part of the audited statements)

Charmaine Gibson Civil $36,449.80

Criminal $6,890.00

Family $35,610.00

Total $78,949.80

Claire Wong Criminal $1,260.00

Total $1,260.00

Clairs Keeley Lawyers Family $1,680.00

Total $1,680.00

Clarke & Gee Civil $10,579.20

Criminal $200,465.41

Family $66,927.00

Total $277,971.61

Craig Rainbird Barrister & Solicitor Criminal $123,115.60

Total $123,115.60

Crotty Legal Civil $2,660.00

Criminal $180,523.50

Family $8,830.00

Total $192,013.50

David N Lewis Barrister at Law Civil $6,216.00

Family $69,430.00

Total $75,646.00

Dobson Mitchell Allport Civil $980.00

Family $24,090.80

Total $25,070.80

Douglas & Collins Civil $1,165.00

Criminal $12,752.50

Total $13,917.50

Empire Barristers & Solicitors Family $980.00

Total $980.00

Everett Flight & Associates Criminal $4,097.80

Total $4,097.80

Fabiano Cangelosi Civil $490.00

Criminal $162,147.70

Total $162,637.70

FitzGerald and Browne Civil $5,050.00

Criminal $220.00

Family $19,342.40

Total $24,612.40

50 Tasmania Legal Aid  Annual Report 2019–2020



Friend & Edwards Lawyers Criminal $6,653.00

Family $2,733.00

Total $9,386.00

G A Richardson Criminal $62,435.60

Total $62,435.60

Garth Stevens Criminal $68,256.11

Total $68,256.11

Grant Tucker Civil $20,170.00

Criminal $101,171.15

Family $19,591.40

Total $140,932.55

Greg Barns Barrister Civil $1,050.00

Criminal $13,121.40

Total $14,171.40

Greg Melick Criminal $19,500.00

Total $19,500.00

Greg Smith & Co Civil $7,597.20

Criminal $7,707.40

Family $4,972.00

Total $20,276.60

Hugo Aston Barrister Family $490.00

Total $490.00

Ian Guest & Associates Civil $2,251.40

Criminal $2,822.00

Family $9,022.00

Total $14,095.40

J Jovanovic & Associates Criminal $297.50

Total $297.50

Jacobs Family Law Civil $20,846.40

Family $63,056.60

Total $83,903.00

Jeff Thompson Family $360.00

Total $360.00

Jessica Sawyer Civil $6,031.40

Criminal $18,504.00

Total $24,535.40

JGD Legal Family $1,650.00

Total $1,650.00

Kate Cuthbertson Civil $14,210.00

Total $14,210.00

Kate Mooney Civil $8,260.00

Family $27,810.00

Total $36,070.00

Kim Baumeler Civil $2,940.00

Criminal $211,622.86

Total $214,562.86

Legal Solutions Family $700.00

Total $700.00

List G Barristers Civil $11,080.00

Total $11,080.00

Mai Truong Lawyers Criminal $5,575.00

Total $5,575.00

Mary Anne Ryan Civil $15,740.00

Family $30,356.99

Total $46,096.99

Matthew Verney Lawyers Civil $66,527.40

Criminal $95,542.40

Family $159,573.00

Total $321,642.80

McGrath & Co. Civil $14,456.80

Criminal $5,029.20

Family $28,175.20

Total $47,661.20

McLean McKenzie & Topfer Criminal $4,495.45

Total $4,495.45

McVeity Dean Lawyers Civil $28,049.40

Family $113,467.80

Total $141,517.20

Michael Trezise Family $11,920.00

Total $11,920.00

Murdoch Clarke Civil $3,010.00

Criminal $4,825.00

Family $24,555.31

Total $32,390.31

Murray & Associates Family $74,140.00

Total $74,140.00

Nick Beattie Barrister and Solicitor Civil $1,820.00

Total $1,820.00
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Ogilvie Jennings Civil $83,604.00

Criminal $47,864.20

Family $198,138.60

Total $329,606.80

Pagett & Associates Civil $38,720.40

Criminal $1,265.00

Family $16,260.00

Total $56,245.40

Patrick O’Halloran Civil $1,330.00

Criminal $33,742.50

Total $35,072.50

Paul Sullivan Criminal $700.00

Total $700.00

Peter Heerey Lawyer Civil $13,052.00

Criminal $17,650.00

Total $30,702.00

Peter Neil Slipper Civil $3,388.40

Criminal $16,015.00

Total $19,403.40

Petersen Legal Civil $1,804.10

Criminal $13,710.07

Family $57,941.40

Total $73,455.57

Philip Theobald Family $16,544.00

Total $16,544.00

Philip Welch Civil $17,380.95

Family $7,760.00

Total $25,140.95

Philippa Morgan Civil $17,428.20

Criminal $68,984.50

Total $86,412.70

Philippa Willshire Civil $73,208.20

Criminal $36,170.50

Family $16,652.60

Total $126,031.30

PWB Lawyers Civil $10,334.00

Family $46,642.80

Total $56,976.80

Rae & Partners Devonport Civil $30,044.00

Criminal $742.00

Family $59,048.00

Total $89,834.00

Rae & Partners Lawyers Civil $13,690.00

Criminal $163,109.35

Family $141,668.20

Total $318,467.55

Romer Maud Family Lawyers  
Pty Ltd

Family $920.00

Total $920.00

Ross A Hart Barrister and Solicitor Civil $1,400.00

Total $1,400.00

SGW Law Civil $1,505.00

Criminal $104,124.90

Total $105,629.90

Simmons Wolfhagen Civil $23,870.00

Family $8,861.40

Total $32,731.40

Tasmanian Mediation Services Family $4,854.55

Total $4,854.55

Tierney Law Pty Ltd Civil $910.00

Criminal $2,540.00

Family $16,998.40

Total $20,448.40

Todd P. Kovacic Civil $910.00

Criminal $29,875.00

Total $30,785.00

Tremayne Fay & Rheinberger 
Lawyers

Civil $5,000.00

Family $26,971.40

Total $31,971.40

Walker Henderson Lawyers Civil $18,484.40

Family $30,420.00

Total $48,904.40

Wallace Wilkinson & Webster Civil $31,913.40

Family $67,832.68

Total $99,746.08

Walsh Day James Mihal, Barristers 
& Solicitors

Civil $40,848.80

Criminal $25,810.00

Family $14,299.45

Total $80,958.25

Total $5,157,289.46

Payments to private legal firms, between 1 July 2019 and 30 June 2020  
(continued)
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
To the Members of Parliament 
 
Legal Aid Commission of Tasmania 
 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Report 
 
 
Opinion 
 
I have audited the financial report of the Legal Aid Commission of Tasmania (trading as Tasmania 
Legal Aid), which comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2020, statements of 
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, notes to the 
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and the statement of 
certification by the Commissioners. 
 
In my opinion, the accompanying financial report:  

(a) presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Tasmania Legal Aid as at 
30 June 2020 and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended 

(b) is in accordance with the Audit Act 2008 and Australian Accounting Standards. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
I conducted the audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Report section of my report. I am independent of Tasmania Legal Aid in accordance with the ethical 
requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics 
for Professional Accountants (including Independence Standards) (the Code) that are relevant to my 
audit of the financial report in Australia. I have also fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with the Code. 
 
The Audit Act 2008 further promotes the independence of the Auditor-General. The Auditor-
General is the auditor of all Tasmanian public sector entities and can only be removed by Parliament.  
The Auditor-General may conduct an audit in any way considered appropriate and is not subject to 
direction by any person about the way in which audit powers are to be exercised. The Auditor-
General has for the purposes of conducting an audit, access to all documents and property and can 
report to Parliament matters which in the Auditor-General’s opinion are significant. 
 
I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
my opinion.  
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Responsibilities of the Commissioners for the Financial Report 
 
The Commissioners are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report 
in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, and the financial reporting requirements of 
the Audit Act 2008 and for such internal control as determined necessary to enable the preparation 
of the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial report, the Commissioners are responsible for assessing Tasmania Legal 
Aid’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless Tasmania Legal Aid is to be dissolved 
by an Act of Parliament, or the Commissioners intend to cease operations, or have no realistic 
alternative but to do so. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report 
 
My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.  
 
As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, I exercise professional 
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. I also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk 
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of Tasmania Legal Aid’s internal control.  

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Commissioners. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the Commissioner’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on Tasmania Legal Aid’s ability 
to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am required 
to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial report or, 
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusion is based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause Tasmania Legal Aid to cease to continue as a going concern.  
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• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  

 
I communicate with the Commissioners regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 
control that I identify during my audit. 
 
 

 
Leigh Franklin 
Assistant Auditor-General, Financial Audit Services 
Delegate of the Auditor-General 
 
Tasmanian Audit Office 
 
20 October 2020 
Hobart  

56 Tasmania Legal Aid  Annual Report 2019–2020



CONTENTS
1.  CERTIFICATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ............. 58

2.  STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME................ 59

3.  STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION.........................60

4.  STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS.......................................61

5.  STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY.......................... 62

6.  NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS..................... 63

57Tasmania Legal Aid  Annual Report 2019–2020



58 Tasmania Legal Aid  Annual Report 2019–2020



59Tasmania Legal Aid  Annual Report 2019–2020



60 Tasmania Legal Aid  Annual Report 2019–2020





61Tasmania Legal Aid  Annual Report 2019–2020



62 Tasmania Legal Aid  Annual Report 2019–2020



���.9DOZ�9�eZ9Dp{9{�
��{� "9�
9�Z9)�*9D�Z+������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������,9*�-/0123456754586:;<=<>;=?@5=56A6<57B=7A=<;=C6E=?F;G:4H586I6=H6<G6GJKLM<6NKNKPQ@5=56A6<54R@;E<;R;>=<5F>>4M<5;<ES4?;>;67TUVUWXY[V\]ŴX_̀]V"a�)�*9D�Z+b/
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 ��� � �heHf�>t�<��Ŝ CmApCmCnq omAoAmwwA�>�>H�tut�;�xdtSz8fSH#H�>Si8�=;���S��̂H#H pwqmlwq pllm@@C./�� �	�2� �	�
��3
�4���
5
	�/6����7 /9� (&�0�&��� 0&��0&��(� � ��NOTES TO THE FINANCIALS

76 Tasmania Legal Aid  Annual Report 2019–2020



��",7"�"B,MXbmb�Xm��"m",�,b"7�bb�m�MXbmb�Xm��"m",�,b"7 �m7�mbXm�, m��X!���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������#m ,$$�%&$'()*+-.*(/01)213/01)2456-819(3*):0-8-9;1<=-)>6+)(?(3*)@63/;A13)C.2(?(�B,DXEX��mFGX7H�I7,�,b"7M�b!��mb7��B,�,Fm7,7"mH�X7B,!XbJ�b,$KKLNOE,I"B,%����FXb &P,mIQ,IX�!"B,�"m",R�E,Ib�,b"QI�EX!,!%�b!Xb �%STUKVKKK%�I"B,��B,�,NWb"B,J�b,$KYL%Xbmb�Xm�P,mI��bX,7�H"mXb,!%I��"B,���X�X"�I7R�mImb",,M�b!F,I,XbZ,�",!Xb"�"B,��B,�,N�B,I,7"IX�",!m���b"7Xb���!,"B,mH�E,�m7B���Q�b,b"Vm7F,��m7I,�,XEmH�,!X7H�I7,�,b"I,��E,IX,7"�%�I�"B,"�"m�I,7"IX�",!m������m",!I,7,IE,Hm�mb�,�%SYVYL[VYLK\$KY]̂SYVYY[V__K̀N��B,��B,�,QI�EX!,7,�X XH�,mQQ�X�mb"7m��,77"��, m�mX!%�I!X7H�I7,�,b"��7"7V7��Bm7�,!X�m�I,Q�I"7mb!���I"%X�Xb %,,7VXb�"m",DXEX��mF�m"",I7N�B,!X7H�I7,�,b"7�m!,mI,I,��E,I,!�Q�b7���,77%�����Q�,"X�b�%"B,�m"",IN�7�m��QI,�X��X7mQQ�X,!m7mH�%%,Im mXb7"m�"X�b7"Bm"mI,�b7���,77%��Vmb!!X7H�I7,�,b"��mb7!,,�,!�bI,��E,ImH�,NabI,��E,ImH�,��mb7%�I$K$KmI,7B�Fbm"��",Y&N cdefghiejdkln cdefghieopklnoqrstuvw��vt�w�,I�G,Q�7X" $V[$YV&]Y ����	
stuvw��vt�w j��jo�cpo eG�IXb $K$K���H, mbB��!Xb mHm�mb�,�%�m7BXb7B�I"",I�XbE,7"�,b"7N�B,7,XbE,7"�,b"7Xb���!,!",I�7 I,m",I"Bmb&��b"B7H�"b���I,"Bmb_��b"B7N cdefghiejdkln cdefghieopklno
r�v�v�u	�
vwD�b"IXH�"X�b7�,�,XEmH�, Y]VUYK YLV&LL#I�EX7X�b%�IG��H"%��G,H"7 \$VKKK̀ \$VKKK̀��mb�DXEX�GX7H�I7,�,b"M�b! $TKVKYL $ULV&T]�����b"7�,�,XEmH�, YT_V]Y& $KKV$&[R��!7mb!�,IEX�,7�m�\R��̀ U&V$TL T]V]_&RImb"7�,�,XEmH�, T$&V$_K ����	
�v�v�u	�
vw o�doj�d
j qc
�po�0A3*+->6*-A3)'(.(-81>9(D�b"IXH�"X�b7��b7X7"�%7�m��m���b"7�FXb HP��X,b"7m7m��b"IXH�"X�b"�FmI!"B,��7"�%"B,XI�, m��m"",IN�""B,��b���7X�b�%,m�B%Xbmb�Xm�P,mImQI�EX7X�b%�IX�QmXI�,b"X7I,�m����m",!N�BX7,7"X�m",X7�m!,m%",ImI,EX,F�%"B,��II,b"!,H"�I�7Q�I"%��X�mb!"B,�X�,�XB��!�%QmP�,b"7H,Xb �m!,N�B,QI�EX7X�b��b7X7"7�%7�m����b"IXH�"X�b7�b�X�,�P"�H,QmX!%�IFBX�BI,��E,IPm�"X�bX7��b7X!,I,!�b,��b��X�m�N�0-8-9;1<=-)>6+)(?(3*@63/;A13)DXEX��mFGX7H�I7,�,b"M�b!��mb7mI,"B�7,m���b"7I,��E,ImH�,%I��"B,QI��,,!7�%7���,77%��m�"X�b7HP�XEX��mF�X"X mb"77�QQ�I",!HP"B,�"m",R�E,Ib�,b"DXEX��mFGX7H�I7,�,b"M�b!��mb7��B,�,N�B,��mb7mI,I,��E,I,!FX"B"B,m!!X"X�b�%m7�m��QI,�X��FBX�BX7I,XbE,7",!Xb"�"B,%�b!V"��%%7,"mbP%mX�,!�I�b7���,77%��m�"X�b7FBX�B�mPH,FIX"",b�%%NG,"mX�7�%��mb7FIX"",b�%%mI,!,"mX�,!Xb��",Y&N�+1/(=(>*A+)�Im!,G,H"�I7��b7X7"�%m���b"7�FXb HP�"B,I�, m��X!�"m",�Imb�B,7%�II,X�H�I7,�,b"�%�m"X�bm��, m��X!�,�I,"mIXm"\I,7X!,b"Xb���̀,�Q,b!X"�I,Xb��II,!Vm7F,��m7m���b"7�FXb %I���""�Ib,PR,b,Im��7G,QmI"�,b"%�I�"B,I Imb"��bX,7"Bm"mI,I,�,XEmH�,N NOTES TO THE FINANCIALS

77Tasmania Legal Aid  Annual Report 2019–2020



��
�"
�
,�6ALUL�AU��
U
���L
"�LL�U�6ALUL�AU��
U
���L
" 	U"�ULAU
��U��A�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������U������������������������ !UL
"#���A$U%����L"A"
"���!UL
��LA�"!���A$U%����!
,����A�A
�!" �U!UL
��6�L�&	,�"���L�",U$�%��LU�!����'�L%(	
�%�
L�
(�
!���A$��U
�)*�L��)�)&����+�L
!A%�
A�L"UL�	!U��-�%
�!"�.AL��/��'

,�"�A��L
A�A��U"A�'UA!��U!���L"A��!��!���A$U%��&��0101 ��2��3425�� 7���85���9:4;����9 � 85�<=18�>� � 7���85��5��2�:4;����9=?@B18�>� 7���85��5��2�:4;����9B?@C18�>� 7���85��5��2�:4;����9DC18�>�� �+�L
!A%�
A�L"E.AL��	!U��-�%
�!" !UL
"#���A$U%�� �FGHF)FIJGKF�I��G�J) �G)))MM HG)�FFIJGKF�I��G�J) � �G�JHMM �GNIKMM JGONNMM� P10QPC= 0Q111 � BRPQ0?S � =Q0PB 0QSTC PQRSS�01?C ��2��3425�� 7���85���9:4;����9 � 85�<=18�>� � 7���85��5��2�:4;����9=?@B18�>� 7���85��5��2�:4;����9B?@C18�>� 7���85��5��2�:4;����9DC18�>�� � � � � � � �+�L
!A%�
A�L"E.AL��	!U��-�%
�!" !UL
"#���A$U%�� FHG�NN�))G��OM �G)))MM � HGN�NFOOGN�JM � �G)KH��MM J)J�MM IGFFJ�FFGOFFM� 0?BQTR0 0Q111 � ?CSQRT? � 0Q1CB P1P ?BQC0RNOTES TO THE FINANCIALS

78 Tasmania Legal Aid  Annual Report 2019–2020
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1300 366 611
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